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VISION, MISSION AND VALUES

VISION

We see Macter as an integrated global healthcare company serving patients,
healthcare professionals and customers with high quality and innovative products
and services. We are committed to achieving our vision in an ethical and socially

responsible manner.

MISSION

Macter exists to:
e serve humanity by improving health and well-being;
e facilitating all associates to achieve their potential with dignity; and

e providing a means for an ethical and fair livelihood.

VALUES

e Respect

e Integrity

e Innovation

e Collaboration

¢ Excellence
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the Shareholders of Macter International
Limited (the Company) will be held on Saturday, October 26, 2024 at 12:30 p.m. at Moosa D. Desai
Auditorium, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, Chartered Accountants Avenue, Clifton,
Karachi to transact the following business:

A.

1.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

To receive, consider and adopt the audited consolidated and unconsolidated financial statements of
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024 together with the reports of the directors and auditors
thereon.

To consider, declare and approve final cash dividend @ 10% i.e. Rs. 1.00 per ordinary share for the
year ended June 30, 2024, as recommended by the Board of Directors (the Board). This is in addition
to interim cash dividend @ 12.5% i.e. Rs.1.25 per ordinary share, already paid.

To appoint auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending June 30, 2025. The present auditors
M/s. A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible, have offered themselves
for reappointment. The Board of Directors, on recommendation of the Board Audit Committee, has
proposed appointment of auditors M/s. A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants for the year
ending June 30, 2025.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

To approve the circulation of the Annual Report including annual audited financial statements,
Chairman's Review, Directors' Report and Auditor's Report, notices of general meetings and other
information contained therein of the Company to the shareholders of the Company through QR
enabled code and web link, in accordance with Section 223 (6) of the Companies Act, 2017 read with
SECP's S.R.0.389(1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023 and to pass the following resolution with or without
modification:

"RESOLVED THAT Macter International Limited (the "Company") be hereby authorized to circulate its
Annual Report including annual audited financial statements, directors' report, auditor's report, notices
of general meetings and other information contained therein of the Company to its shareholders
through QR enabled code and web link subject to the requirements of Notification No. S.R.0. 389(1)/2023
of Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan dated March 21, 2023."

OTHER BUSINESS:
To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

A statement under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2017 pertaining to the Special Business is being
sent to the shareholders with this notice.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Asif Javed
Company Secretary

Karachi: October 4, 2024
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Notes:
1. Closure of Shares Transfer Books

The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from October 18, 2024 to October 25,
2024 (both days inclusive). The transfers received in order at the office of the Company's Share Registrar
M/s. F. D. Registrar Services (Pvt.) Limited, 17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower-A, I. . Chundrigar, Road,
Karachi before the close of the business on October 17, 2024 will be treated in time for the entitlement
of final cash dividend and to attend and vote at the Meeting.

2. Participation in meeting through Video Link Facility

(i) Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its Circular No. 4 dated February 15,
2021 has directed the listed companies to ensure the participation of shareholders in general
meeting through electronic means as a regular feature in addition to holding physical meetings.

(i) The shareholders who wish to attend the meeting through video link are requested to get
themselves registered with the Company Secretary office by providing their particulars as per
below table by the close of business hours on October 17, 2024:

Folio / CDC No. of .
Full Name CNIC No Account No. Shares Held Cell No. E-mail Address

(iii) The webinar link would be provided through email to the registered shareholders / proxies who
will provide above information and a copy of valid CNIC.

3. For appointing proxies:

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at this Annual General Meeting shall be entitled to appoint
another shareholder, as a proxy to attend, speak and vote on his/her behalf. Proxies in order to be
effective must be received at the Company's Share Registrar's Office not later than 48 hours before
the time of the Meeting.

i)  In case of individuals, the account holder or subaccount holder and / or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations,
shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers
shall be mentioned on the form.

iii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

iv)  In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen

signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the
Company.
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Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically (Mandatory Requirement)

In accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Companies (Distribution
of Dividends) Regulations 2017, a listed company, is required to pay cash dividend to the shareholders
only through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders.

Those shareholders who have still not provided their International Bank Account Number (IBAN) are
once again requested to fill in "Electronic Credit Mandate Form" as reproduced below and send it duly
signed along with a copy of valid CNIC to their respective CDC participant/CDC Investor account services
(in case of shareholding in Book Entry Form) or to the Company's Share Registrar (in case of shareholding
in Physical Form).

(i) Shareholders details:

Name of the Shareholder(s)

Folio # / CDS Account No(s)

CNIC No (Copy attached)

Mobile / Landline No

(i) Shareholders' Bank details:

Title of Bank Account

International Bank Account Number (IBAN)

Bank's Name

Branch Name and address

In the absence of IBAN, or in case of incomplete details, the Company will have to withhold the
payment of cash dividends under the Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017.

Withholding Tax on Dividend

Dividend income on shares is liable to deduction of withholding tax under Section 150 of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 and currently, the deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid
by the companies based on 'Active’ and 'Non-Active' status of shareholders shall be @ 15% and 30%
respectively where 'Active' means a person whose name appears on the Active Taxpayers List available
at e-portal of FBR (http://www.fbr.gov.pk/) and 'Non-Active' means a person whose name is not being
appeared on the Active Taxpayers List.

In case of joint account, each holder is to be treated individually as either 'Active' or 'Non-Active' and
tax will be deducted on the basis of shareholding of each joint holder as may be notified by the
shareholder, in writing as follows, to our Share Registrar, or if not so notified, each joint holder shall
be assumed to have an equal number of shares.

Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder
Company Folio/CDS Total Name &
Name Account No. | No. of Shares | nic No.

Shareholding | Name & | Shareholding
Proportion CNIC No. Proportion
(No. of shares) (No. of shares)
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The required information must reach the Share Registrar of the Company before the close of the
business on October 17, 2024 otherwise it will be assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal
shareholder and Joint Shareholder(s).

The shareholders seeking to avail exemption or are eligible for deduction at a reduce rate U/S 150 of
the Ordinance, must provide valid Tax Exemption Certificate or necessary documentary evidence as
the case may be, to the Company's Share Registrar M/s. F. D. Registrar Services (Pvt.) Limited before
book closure otherwise tax will be deducted on dividend as per applicable rates.

Electronic Transmission of Audited Financial Statements & Notices

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its Notification S.R.O. 787(1)/2014
dated 8th September 2014 has permitted companies to circulate Audited Financial Statements along
with Notice of Annual General Meeting to its Shareholders through e-mail. Accordingly, Shareholders
are hereby requested to convey their consent and e-mail address for receiving Audited Financial
Statements and Notice through e-mail.

Please note that giving email address for receiving of Annual Financial Statements instead of receiving
the same by post is optional, in case you do not wish to avail this facility please ignore this notice.
Annual Financial Statements will be sent at your registered address, as per normal practice.

Postal Ballot/E-voting

Pursuant to the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018, shareholders will be allowed to exercise
their right to vote through postal ballot that is voting by post or through any electronic mode subject
to requirements of Section 143 to Section 145 of the Companies Act, 2017 and procedure contained
in the aforesaid Regulations. Ballot Paper is annexed to this notice and the same is also available on
the Company's website www.macter.com to download.

Zakat Declaration

Zakat will be deducted from the dividends at source at the rate of 2.5% of the paid-up value of the
share (Rs. 10 each) and will be deposited within the prescribed period with the relevant authority. In
case of claiming exemption, please submit your Zakat Declaration under Zakat and Ushr Ordinance,
1980 and Rule 4 of Zakat (Deduction and Refund) Rules, 1981, CZ-50 Form with our Share Registrar.
Physical shareholders are requested to submit the said declaration to our Share Registrar in the proper
manner. The Shareholders must write Macter International Limited's name and their respective CDS
A/C # or Folio numbers on Zakat Declarations at relevant place.

Deposit of Physical Shares in CDC Accounts

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing company shall be required to replace its
physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by
the SECP, within a period not exceeding four years from the commencement of the Companies Act,

2017.

The shareholders having physical shareholding may please open CDC sub-account with any of the
brokers or investors account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into scrip less form.

For any query/information, the investors may contact the Company's Share Registrar.
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10. Unclaimed Dividend

Shareholders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend or did not collect their physical shares,
are advised to immediately contact our Company's Share Registrar, to collect/enquire about their
unclaimed dividend or pending shares, if any.

11. Submission of CNIC or Passport

Shareholders are requested to provide photocopy of their CNIC or passport (in case of foreigner),
unless it has been provided earlier, enabling the Company to comply with relevant laws.

12. Change of Address

Shareholders are requested to immediately notify the change of address, if any to the Company's
Share Registrar.

13. Placement of Audited Financials on the website

Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024 have been
placed on Company's website i.e. www.macter.com.

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS CONCERNING SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 134 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2017

The statement sets out the material facts concerning the Special Business given in agenda item No. 4 of
the Notice which will be considered to be passed by the shareholders. The purpose of the Statement is to
set forth the material facts concerning such Special Business.

Agenda Item No. 4 of the Notice - Circulation of Annual Audited Financial Statements through QR enabled
code and Web Link.

Subject to the requirements of Notification No. S.R.0. 389(1)/2023 of Securities & Exchange Commission
of Pakistan dated March 21, 2023, the Company is desirous to obtain shareholders' approval in order to
circulate annual audited financial statements to its shareholders thorough QR enabled code and web link,
vide an ordinary resolution.

However, a member may request to the Company Secretary or Company's Share Registrar to provide hard
copy of annual audited accounts and the same would be provided at member's registered address, free

of cost.

None of the Directors of the Company have any direct or indirect interest in the Special Business, except
in their capacity as shareholders or Directors of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN'’S REVIEW

On behalf of the board of directors, | would like to share or Board's performance review of your Company for the
year ended June 30, 2024.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PERFORMANCE

The Board comprises of an appropriate mix of business professionals who add value to the board oversight through
their respective expertise.

The primary objectives of the Board include providing strategic direction to the Company and supervising the
management. During the year under review the board has effectively discharged its responsibilities as required under
the Companies Act, 2017 and Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance), Regulations 2019. All quarterly, half
yearly and annual financial results were reviewed by the board and it extended its guidance to the management.
Board played a key role in monitoring management performance and on major risks.

Board members also reviewed and approved Company's annual financial budget for FY 2024-25, capital expenditure
requirements and significant investments.

The Board met in quarterly meetings to discharge its responsibilities. Board members attendance was at a high level
during the year. The independent and other non-executive directors were actively involved in all business decisions.

Board Audit Committee and Board Human Resource and Remuneration Committees also played their roles effectively.

In pursuant to the requirements of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, a formal
and effective process is in place for an annual evaluation of Board's performance, Members of Board and its Sub-
Committees. Board's Performance review consists of comprehensive Self-Evaluation Questionnaires on performance.
Based on the feedback by each Individual Director a consolidated average performance rating is computed. The
performance rating of the Board, Individual Directors & Committees performance was satisfactory and effective.
As the Chairman of your Company | will continue to be responsible for leading the Board, fostering an inclusive culture
of openness and constructive dialogue. | remain committed to ensure that our Board and its committees should
perform effectively and take timely decisions to create value for all stakeholders.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
I would like to thank all our shareholders, customers, bankers and employees for their resilience and support during

these unprecedented times. | would also like to thank the Board members, CEO and his team for their dedication and
hard-work.

Amanullah Kassim
Chairman

Karachi
September 27, 2024
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

We are pleased to present the Annual Report together with the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2024.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The financial results of the Company are summarized hereunder:

Year ended June 30, 2024 Tunover and Gross Profit
Unconsolidated Consolidated 3000 — 7535
DESCRIPTION 2024 2023 2024 2023 7,000 6,680
Rupees Millions g 6000
S 5,000
Turnover - Net 7,535 6,680 7,975 6,926 S 4,000 3182
Gross profit 3,182 2,785 3,420 2,911 g zggg 2,785
Gross margin 42.2% 41.7% 42.9% 42.0% “ 1,000
Operating Profit 713 618 719 580 i 2024 2023
Operating Margin 9.5% 9.3% 9.0% 8.4% Turnover M Gross profit
Profit before tax 612 557 593 508
Profit / (loss) after tax 427 393 402 349

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Net turnover for the year ended 30th June 2024 was Rupees 7,535 m reflecting a 13% increase from last
year.

Our core prescription sales business continued to grow, posting a 23% increase (Current period: RS. 6,533
million vs. Last year: RS. 5,324 million), reflecting the strong performance of our brands, such as Pegstim
(Pegylated GCSF) in Oncology; Mac-Epo (Erythropoietin) in Nephrology; and Titan (Ceftriaxone) in Anti-
Infectives. This growth was partially offset by a planned decline in government tender participation and
sales in our institutional segment (Institutional sales 2024: PKR 277m vs 2023: PKR 448m - a 38% reduction)
due to severe delays in payments that industry has been experiencing.

Gross margins have experienced a marginal increase of 0.5% primarily due to better sales mix, higher
contribution from profitable Prescription & Export business.

Operating profit for the current fiscal year is RS. 713 million, representing a 15% increase compared to the
previous year. This notable improvement is attributed to higher sales, increase in gross profit margins and
the implementation of efficiency enhancements and cost optimization measures.

Finance cost increased by 64% during the year, primarily attributed to the rise in KIBOR (Karachi Interbank

Offer Rate) rates in the current period, resulting in a finance cost of 101 million compared to 61 million
in the previous year.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE Profit Before Tax and Profit After Tax

700
600
500
400
300
200
100

During the year under review, the Company has made capital expenditure =

of Rupees 296 million in new manufacturing equipment, facility upgrades
to ensure GMP and regulatory compliance and motor vehicles for staff
as per company policy.

557

427 393

Rupees - Millions

Profit before Tax: Rupees 612m is higher by +55m, reflecting a growth
of 10% over last year. 2024 2023
PBT M PAT

Profit after Tax: Rupees 427m is higher +34m over last year, a growth of

9% over last year.
Earnings Per Share
9.32

EARNINGS PER SHARE 100 858

8.00

Earnings per share of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024 is 6.00

Rupees 9.32 vs. Rupees 8.58 last year.

Rupees

4.00

2.00

2024 2023

DIVIDEND

The board of directors have recommended a final cash dividend of 10%
i.e. Rs. 1.00 per share. This is in addition to Interim Cash Dividend at Rs. 1.25 per share i.e. 12.5%.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINITIES

The Company is exposed to certain inherent business risks and uncertainties. Following key business risks
have been identified:

e  Cost Inflation and lag in compensatory inflationary price adjustments by DRAP
e  Pak Rupee devaluation

e  Global API and logistics disruptions

e Increasingly stringent local and international regulatory requirements

e Delays in product registration and pricing

e  Recruiting and retaining essential talent

e Increasing threats to data security and data privacy

We are actively working with the internal and external stakeholders to mitigate and reduce aforesaid risks
to acceptable levels.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Our Company's mission is to serve humanity by improving their health and well-being. The Company has
undertaken a number of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives during the year, including:

a) Provision of free medicines to various charitable organizations / hospitals
b) Capability-building of doctors and healthcare professionals

c) Support to various educational institutions and hospitals

d) Free medical screening camps

e) Support to poor patients
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HEALTH, SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT

Our Company is committed to complying with all regulatory requirements related to health, safety, and
the environment. We hold ISO certifications for our Quality Management System (ISO 9001:2015),
Environmental Management System (ISO 14001:2015), and Occupational Health and Safety Management
System (OHSAS 18001:2007).

Our manufacturing facilities operate in accordance with industry-standard EHS protocols. An Emergency
Response Committee is in place to effectively manage any emergency situations. Throughout our facilities,
we have installed smoke detectors, fire alarms, and fire extinguishers, and we conduct regular firefighting
training sessions. Employees are equipped with personal protective equipment as necessary, including
gowns, goggles, gloves, helmets, earplugs, and gas masks.

We monitor and control noise levels from all equipment to ensure they remain within safe limits. Emissions
from generators are regularly assessed, and third-party inspections of our boilers are conducted to maintain
safety standards. Solid chemical waste is incinerated, and all effluents undergo treatment.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

The Company made a total contribution of Rupees 781 million to the National Exchequer by way of income
tax, custom duties and sales tax.

CREDIT RATING

VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has upgraded the entity ratings of Macter International Limited from
"A/A-2 (Single A / A-Two)" to A/A-1 (Single A / A-One)". Outlook assigned to our rating is "Stable".

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The directors are aware of their responsibility of maintaining adequate internal financial controls. Through
review of internal audit reports and discussion with management and auditors (internal and external), we
confirm that adequate controls have been implemented by the Company.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK
Following are the statements on the corporate and financial reporting framework:
e The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its state
of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

e Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.

e Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of Financial
Statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

¢ International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of these financial statements.

e  The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

e  There are no doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
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Information about taxes and levies is given in the notes and form part of the financial statements.

There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed
in the Listing Regulations.

The value of investments of employees' provident fund based on latest unaudited accounts as
of June 30, 2024 is Rupees 309 million.

COMPOSITION OF BOARD

The board consists of nine members, including 1 female and 8 male directors. The composition of the
Board is as follows:

Particulars Number
Independent Non-Executive Directors 3
Other Non-Executive Director 3
Executive Directors 2
Female Non-Executive Director 1
Total 9
The list of existing directors is as under:

S. No. | Name Category
1 Mr. Amanullah Kassim Independent Non-Executive
2 Mr. Jawwad Ahmed Farid Independent Non-Executive
3 Shaikh Abdus Sami Independent Non-Executive
4 Sheikh Perwez Ahmed Non-Executive
5 Sheikh Muhammed Waseem Non-Executive
6 Mr. Muhammed Ather Sultan Non-Executive
7 Ms. Masarrat Misbah Female Non-Executive
8 Mr. Asif Misbah Executive
9 Mr. Swaleh Misbah Khan Executive

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

Board Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in discharging their responsibilities in accordance
with the Corporate Governance and Financial Reporting framework. The Committee consists of following
three members, two of them are non-executive members and Chairman is independent non-executive

director.
S. No. Name Category Position
1 Shaikh Abdus Sami Independent Non-Executive Chairman
2 Sheikh Muhammed Waseem Non-Executive Member
3 Muhammad Ather Sultan Non-Executive Member
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BOARD HUMAN RESOURCE AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

2024

Board Human Resource and Remuneration Committee assists the Board of Directors in discharging their
responsibilities with regard to periodic review of human resource policies and practices within the Company.
It also assists the Board in selection, evaluation, compensation and succession planning of key management
personnel. The Committee consists of following three members, two of them are non-executive directors
and Chairman is independent non-executive director.

S. No. Name Category Position
1 Mr. Jawwad Ahmed Farid Independent Non-Executive Chairman
2 Mr. Muhammad Ather Sultan Non-Executive Member
3 Mr. Asif Misbah Executive Member

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES ATTENDANCE

Board Human Resource
S. Name Board of Directors |Board Audit Committee| and Remu[\eration
No. Committee
Entitled | Attended Entitled | Attended Entitled | Attended

1 | Mr. Amanullah Kassim 6 5 NA NA NA NA

2 | Mr. Asif Misbah 6 6 NA NA 3 3

3 | Mr. Swaleh Misbah Khan 6 4 NA NA NA NA

4 | Sheikh Muhammed Waseem 6 6 4 4 NA NA

5 | Shaikh Abdus Sami 2 2 NA NA

6 | Syed Anis Ahmad Shah 3 3 2 2 NA NA

7 | Sheikh Perwez Ahmad 6 5 NA NA NA NA

8 | Mr. Muhammad Ather Sultan 6 5 4 1 3 1

9 | Ms. Masarrat Misbah 6 - NA NA NA NA
10| Mr. Jawwad Ahmed Farid 6 4 NA NA 3 3

CHANGES IN BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review, following changes were made in the Board of Directors:

Outgoing

Incoming

Syed Anis Ahmed Shah

Shaikh Abdus Sami

The Board acknowledges and appreciates the services of outgoing Director and welcome new Director.
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DIRECTORS' TRAINING PROGRAM

Six directors are certified under the SECP approved Directors' Training Programs as at June 30, 2024. The
remaining three will receive trainings in due course to comply with the code.

REMUNERATION POLICY OF NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The fees of the non-executive directors (independent and others) to attend the board or board committee
meetings is approved by the Board as per the terms of the Articles of Association of the Company.

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA
Key operating and financial data and ratios of last six years are annexed.
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

A statement of the pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2024 is annexed. During the year no shares of
the Company were traded by Directors, Executives and their spouses.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

The Company's internal audit function is managed by the Head of Internal Audit, who is assisted by Internal
Auditors M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants. The Head of Internal Audit reports to the
Chairman of Board Audit Committee.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The present auditors, M/s A.F. Ferguson & Co. have retired being eligible have offered themselves for
reappointment as the statutory auditors of the Company. The Board of Directors of the Company has
endorsed the recommendation of the Board Audit Committee for the reappointment of M/s A.F. Ferguson
& Co.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

No events have occurred between the financial year end and the date of this report materially affecting
the financial status of the Company.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The future outlook for the Pakistan pharmaceutical industry remains optimistic, driven by increasing demand
from a growing population and improved access to healthcare services. The recent de-regulation of non-
essential medicines by the Drug Regulatory Authority of Pakistan (DRAP) is expected to enhance profit
margins, foster competition, and encourage local manufacturers to innovate. Furthermore, the government's
commitment to healthcare infrastructure is evident by the increased allocation to the health care sector
highlighting the response to the population's growing healthcare needs.
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However, challenges persist that could impact growth. The ongoing geopolitical situation introduces
uncertainty affecting investment and supply chains, while fluctuations in foreign exchange rates pose risks
to the cost of raw materials and imported medicines. In response, the industry is increasingly focusing on
export markets to counter decreasing margins. To seize growth opportunities, pharmaceutical companies
must invest in research and development, adopt advanced technologies, and strengthen distribution
networks. Overall, despite the obstacles, the long-term potential for the Pakistani pharmaceutical sector
remains promising. The management team, under the Board's guidance, is prioritizing research and
development, upgrading plants to meet international standards, and exploring new export markets.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board of Directors appreciate the commitment, dedication, and devotion of all our employees who
have worked to ensure supply of our lifesaving medicines. We also acknowledge the support and cooperation
received from our valued shareholders, customers, distributors, suppliers, financial institutions and regulatory
authorities.

All praise and gratitude to Allah SWT for His continued blessings.

On behalf of the board

e

Asif Misbah Jawwad Ahmed Farid
Chief Executive Director
Karachi

September 27, 2024
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KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA

Unit 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Summary of Statement of Financial Position
Non-Current Assets Rs. M 2,458 2,414 2,064 1,867 1,669 1,435
Current Assets Rs. M 2,955 2,509 2,374 1,852 2,289 1,776
Total Assets Rs. M 5,413 4,923 4,438 3,719 3,958 3,211
Total Equity Rs. M 3,197 2,871 2,575 1,350 1,168 1,194
Non-Current Liabilities Rs. M 664 625 474 812 783 478
Current Liabilities Rs. M 1,552 1,427 1,389 1,557 2,007 1,539
Total Liabilities Rs. M 2,216 2,052 1,863 2,369 2,790 2,017
Total Equity and Liabilities Rs. M 5,413 4,923 4,438 3,719 3,958 3,211
Summary of Profit or Loss
Turnover - net Rs. M 7,535 6,680 5,311 5,142 5,528 4,082
Gross profit Rs. M 3,182 2,785 2,374 2,115 2,037 1,733
Operating profit Rs. M 713 618 528 460 295 242
Profit before taxation Rs. M 612 557 490 331 63 122
Taxation Rs. M 185 164 172 74 48 16
Net profit Rs. M 427 393 318 257 15 106
Ratios
Profitability Ratios
Gross profit to turnover % 42.22 41.69 44.70 41.13 36.85 42.45
Operating profit to turnover % 9.46 9.25 9.94 8.95 5.34 5.93
Profit before tax to turnover % 8.12 8.34 9.23 6.44 1.14 2.99
Net profit to turnover % 5.67 5.88 5.99 5.01 0.27 2.60
Return on equity before tax % 19.15 19.40 19.03 24.52 5.39 10.22
Return on equity after tax % 13.36 13.69 12.35 19.06 1.28 8.88
Return on capital employed % 18.46 17.68 17.32 21.29 15.12 14.47
Return on assets % 7.89 7.98 7.17 6.92 0.38 3.30
Market Ratios
Market price per share at year end Rs. 94.00 97.04 125.00 161.38 93.06 60.95
Market capitalization Rs. M 4,306 4,445 5,726 6,317 3,643 2,386
Price earning ratio Rs. 10.08 11.31 17.39 24.54  242.58 22.41
Break up value /share Rs. 69.79 62.66 56.22 34.46 29.84 30.50
Basic / diluted earnings per share Rs. 9.32 8.58 7.19 6.57 0.38 2.72
Dividend payout ratio % 24.13 12.59 46.23 64.58 - 33.10
Dividend cover ratio Times 4.14 7.94 2.16 1.55 - 3.01
Liquidity Ratios
Current ratio Times 1.90 1.76 1.71 1.19 1.14 1.15
Quick / acid test ratio Times 0.56 0.44 0.72 0.49 0.57 0.60

* Based on proposed dividend
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

AS AT JUNE 30, 2024
Number of Certificate Holding Certificate
Certificate Holders From To Held
820 1 - 100 18,713
166 101 - 500 45,934
43 501 - 1000 32,780
45 1001 - 5000 91,189
6 5001 - 10000 40,900
5 10001 - 15000 63,100
2 15001 - 20000 35,700
1 20001 - 25000 25,000
1 30001 - 35000 33,000
1 35001 - 40000 36,572
1 40001 - 45000 40,001
1 150001 - 155000 153,061
1 200001 - 205000 203,061
4 280001 - 285000 1,137,136
1 565001 - 570000 568,568
1 605001 - 610000 606,061
2 3030001 - 3035000 6,060,606
1 6430001 - 6435000 6,430,868
1 15085001 - 15090000 15,089,321
1 15095001 - 15100000 15,099,447
1104 45,811,018
Shareholder's Category Number of Number of Percentage
Shareholders Shares Held
Individuals 1088 33,276,710 73
Joint Stock Companies 9 12,496,898 27
Investment Companies 1 1,825 0
Insurance Companies 1 19,000 0
Modarabas 1 30 0
Others 4 16,555 0
1104 45,811,018 100
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Categories Shareholders as on June 30, 2024
S. No. Categories Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Total
1 Directors, Chief Executive office and their
spouse(s) and minor children 9 30,473,568
Asif Misbah 15,099,447
Swaleh Misbah Khan 15,089,321
Sheikh Perwez Ahmed 500
Masarrat Misbah 284,285
Jawwad Ahmed Farid 1
Sheikh Muhammed Waseem 1
Sheikh Abdus Sami 1
Amanullah Kassim 1
Muhammad Ather Sultan 11
2 Associated Companies, Undertakings and related parties NIL
3 Executives 2 37,600
4 Modarabas and Mutual Funds 1 30
5 NIT and ICP 1 1,825
Investment Corporation of Paksitan 1,825
6 Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking
Finance Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful
and Pension Funds 10 12,515,898
7 Others 4 16,555
8 General Public 1,077 2,765,542
Total 1,104 45,811,018
Shareholders Holding 10% or More in the Company
Number of %
Shares
Mr. Asif Misbah 15,099,447 32.96
Mr. Swaleh Misbah Khan 15,089,321 32.94
Saas Enterprises (Pvt.) Limited 6,430,868 14.04
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DUPONT ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Net profit
ﬂk 427

Net profit
margin
5.67%

*Total Cost

. Egil 7,108

Return on
asset
7.88%

Asset
“ T Current
urnover
1.39 Times A «’525385'(55
Returr‘ Total assets ] EDZI
on Equity — |:g:| N e 113
13.34%
Non current
v

assets
2,458

Ownership
Ratio
59.06%

Total
Liabilities
2,216

Current
Liabilities
1,552

Total
Assets
5,413

Owner's
Equity
3,197

Non current
Liabilities
664

*Total Cost includes COGS, Selling, Admin, Other Expenses (less other income), Financial Charges and Taxation

28




Annual Report

Macter International Limited

STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION AND ITS DISTRIBUTION

VALUE ADDITION

Turnover - net
Other operating income

VALUE DISTRIBUTION

Materials and services

Government taxes and duties

Employees remuneration, benefits & others
Operating and other costs

Financial charges

Dividends

Retained within the business

2024

H 48.1%

4.8%

m 13% ™ 11%
" 16.3%

W 25.7%

m2.7%

B Materials and services

B Government taxes and duties

m Employees remuneration, benefits & others
m Operating and other costs

M Financial charges

H Dividends

Retained within the business

2024

(Rupees in '000) %

2023
(Rupees in '000) %

7,535,382 99.1% 6,680,391 98.8%
69,806 0.9% 79,457 1.2%
7,605,188 100.0% 6,759,848 100.0%
3,655,596 48.1% 3,297,465 48.8%
204,442 2.7% 181,500 2.7%
1,952,605 25.7% 1,770,582 26.2%
1,245,391 16.3% 1,056,062 15.6%
100,573 1.3% 61,371 0.9%
82,002 1.1% 93,455 1.4%
364,579 4.8% 299,413 4.4%
7,605,188 100.0% 6,759,848 100%

2023

o 149% m 48.8%
m 0.9% 4.4%
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PROFILE OF SHARIAH ADVISOR OF THE COMPANY

Mufti Muhammad Najeeb Khan holds a degree of specialization in Islamic
Jurisprudence/Islamic Finance "Takhassus" from Jamia Darul Uloom Karachi under

supervision of Justice Retd. Mufti Tagi Usmani which is equivalent to PHD.

Mufti Muhammad Najeeb Khan have rendered services to many local and
multinational organizations especially in Islamic Banking and Finance, Islamic Assets
& Fund Management, Islamic Financial Product Development, Halal Food Area,
Slaughtering Rules. He was honored with an award for leading Shariah Advisor in
2015 from Mr. Mamnoon Hussain, President of Pakistan. He also has an extensive
experience of management, teaching and training extending over a period of more

than 20 years.

Mufti Muhammad Najeeb Khan is serving in the field of Halal Foods. He is a Chairman
of Shariah Board of Halal Awareness and Research Council (HARC) and Member of
Sindh Food Authority Technical Committee. He also worked as member of Pakistan
Standards and Quality Control Authority (PSQCA) and Vice Chariman of Technical
Committee on Halal Pharma Standards of PSQCA.
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SHARIAH REVIEW REPORT
For the year ended June 30, 2024

With the grace of Allah, | have been appointed as Shariah Advisor of Macter International Limited
under the provisions of Shariah Governance Regulations, 2023 (Regulations). Under the Regulations my
role includes:

o Introduction of a mechanism which will strengthen Shariah compliance in letter and spirit and ensure
that the systems, procedures and policies adopted are in line with the Shariah principles.

o Ensure that the inflows and outflows of financial resources are free from: Riba (interest, usury or any
other form), Qimar (Gambling), Gharar (Uncertainty) and other vices prohibited by Shariah.

o Advise on regular basis that the business, transactions and investments made are in accordance with
the principles of Shariah.

o Make recommendations for potential improvements and the formulation of policies in line with Shariah
principles.

Issuance of Shariah Compliance Certificate:

| have performed Shariah screening of Macter International Limited on the basis of its Financial Statements
of June 30, 2024 (un-audited) using the criteria mentioned in the Chapter IV (b) of Shariah Governance
Regulations, 2023.

Alhamdulillah, | found Macter International Limited as Shariah Compliant as per the said screening criteria
and hence | have issued a Shariah Compliance Certificate in favor of MACTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED.

Review of Operations and my Opinion:

During the period, | reviewed the operations and business activities of Macter International Limited with
respect to Shariah compliance. For that purpose, | met with the relevant officials of Macter International
Limited. Accordingly, it has been agreed with management that all legal documents and policies would be
executed and implemented in Macter International Limited after approval from Shariah Advisor. The
Company is carrying on its operations, business affairs and activities according to the principles of Shariah.

The company has taken steps to ensure that its pharmaceuticals ingredients used in manufacturing health

care products are from Halal sources and has taken Halal certificate for its majority products from an
accredited Halal certification body.
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| have conducted the Shariah review of Macter International Limited for the financial year ended on June
30, 2024 in accordance with the provisions of Shariah Governance Regulations, 2023 and in my opinion:

The transactions, the documentations and the procedures adopted have been in accordance with
principles of Shariah;

The business affairs have been carried out in accordance with rules and principles of Shariah;

No Shariah non-compliant income has been earned by the Company, during the year. Therefore, no
purification of income was required during the year

Conclusion:

Based on the Review of Company's operations, transactions, related documentation, processes, policies,
legal agreements and management's representation, in my opinion, the affairs of Macter International
Limited have been carried out in accordance with the rules and principles of Shariah, and therefore, | am

of the view that Macter International Limited is a Shariah Compliant Company.

In the end; | pray to Allah Almighty to grant us success and help us at every step, keep us away from every
hindrance and difficulty, and give financial success to Macter International Limited.

=

Muhammad Najeeb Khan

Karachi
September 19, 2024
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of Company : MACTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Year ending : JUNE 30, 2024

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors is 09 as per the following:
a. Male : 08
b. Female : 01
2. The composition of the Board is as follows:
Category Names
Independent Directors Mr. Amanullah Kassim
Shaikh Abdus Sami
Mr. Jawwad Ahmed Farid
Non-executive Director Sheikh Muhammed Waseem
Mr. Muhammad Ather Sultan
Sheikh Perwez Ahmed
Executive Directors Mr. Asif Misbah
Mr. Swaleh Misbah Khan
Female Non-Executive Director Ms. Masarrat Misbah

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company.

4, The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant
policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by the Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance

with the Act and these Regulations.
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9. Six directors are certified under the SECP approved Directors' Training Programs as at June 30, 2024.
The remaining three will receive trainings in due course to comply with the code.

10. The board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and head of
internal audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied

with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

11. Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board.

12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

S. No. | Name Category Position
1 Shaikh Abdus Sami Independent Non-Executive Chairman
2 Sheikh Muhammed Waseem| Non-Executive Member
3 Muhammad Ather Sultan Non-Executive Member

BOARD HUMAN RESOURCE AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

S. No. | Name Category Position
1 Mr. Jawwad Ahmed Farid Independent Non-Executive Chairman
2 Mr. Muhammad Ather Sultan | Non-Executive Member
3 Mr. Asif Misbah Executive Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised
to the committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

a.| Audit Committee Quarterly
b.| HR and Remuneration Committee | Three

15. The board has outsourced the internal audit function to KPMG TASEER HADI & CO, CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are
conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance
with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved
in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the
chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director
of the Company.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide

other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement
and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.
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18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have
been complied with.

19. Explanations pertaining to the regulations other than 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 are below:

. . Reg.
S.No Requirement Explanation No.

| The Chief Financial Officer and company secretary | The Chief Financial Officer and the company 13
orin their absence, the nominee appointed by the | secretary attended meetings of the Board as
Board, shall attend all meetings of the Board. required by the Code of Corporate Governance,

except for the period when the Chief Financial
Officer position was vacant.

Il The Board may constitute a separate committee | The responsibilities as prescribed for the 29
designated as the nomination committee, of such | Nomination Committee are being taken care of at
number and class of directors, as it may deem | the Board level as and when needed. Therefore,
appropriate in its circumstances. a separate committee is not currently considered

to be necessary.

1l The Board may constitute the risk management | The functions of the Risk Management Committee 30
committee, of such number and class of directors, | are currently performed by the Board Audit
as it may deem appropriate in its circumstances | Committee and are included in its terms of
to carry out a review of effectiveness of risk | reference. Hence, a separate committee is currently
management procedures and present a report to | not needed.
the Board.

\Y, The company may post on its website key elements | As the regulations provides concession with respect | 35(1)
of its significant policies including but not limited | to the disclosure of key elements of significant
to the following: policies on the website, only those policies which
1. key elements of its significant policies including | were considered necessary, have been posted.

but not limited to the following:

(i) communication and disclosure policy;

(ii)  code of conduct for members of board
of directors, senior management and
other employees;

(iii)  risk management policy;

(iv) internal control policy;

(v)  whistle blowing policy;

(vi) corporate social responsibility/
sustainability/ environmental, social and
governance related policy.

(vii) policies for promoting DE&I and
protection against harassment at the
workplace.

\ Role of the board and its members to address | At present the Board provides governance oversight | 10(A)
sustainability risk and opportunities. The board is | in relation to Company's initiatives on Environment,
responsible for setting the Company's sustainability | Social and Governance (ESG) matters. Nevertheless,
strategies, priorities and targets to create long | the requirements introduced recently by SECP
term corporate value. The board may establish a | through notification dated June 12, 2024, will be
dedicated sustainability committee. complied with in due course.

Amanullah Kassim
Chairman

Karachi : September 19, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of Macter International Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of

Macter International Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2024 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the

Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of
Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any
non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not
required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls
or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance
procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024.

ﬁ????ﬁwm‘ gc.,

A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Date : October 04, 2024
UDIN: CR202410290cC5pPK g0t

A. F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network
State Life Building No. 1-C, I.I. Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-74000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (21) 32426682-6/32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/ 32427938/ 32424740; <www.pwc.com/pk>

KARACHI = LAHORE = ISLAMABAD

38




Cmual Report

Macter International Limited 2024

UNCONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

39




Annual Report

2024 Macter International Limited

L

pwc A'FFERGUSON ¢:CoO

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of Macter International Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Macter International Limited (the
Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2024, and the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and unconsolidated notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information
and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
unconsolidated statement of financial position, unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated
statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the
Company's affairs as at June 30, 2024 and of the profit and other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

A. F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network
State Life Building No. 1-C, I.I. Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-74000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (21) 32426682-6/32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/ 32427938/ 32424740; <www.pwc.com/pk>

KARACHI = LAHORE = ISLAMABAD
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S. No.

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

(i)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(Refer note 3.19 & 24 to the unconsolidated
financial statements)

The Company's revenue is generated from sales
of pharmaceutical and other consumer products.
The Company recognised revenue of Rs. 7.48
billion from the sale of goods to domestic as well
as export customers during the year ended June
30, 2024.

As part of our overall response to the audit risks
when identifying and assessing the risk in revenue
recognition, we considered that there is an inherent
risk that revenue may be overstated as it is a key
performance measure, which could create an
incentive or pressure. Further, we have focused
our audit activities over the revenue recognised
near to year end as there was a high risk that the
revenue is recorded before the control of goods is
transferred to the customer and in an incorrect
accounting period. Moreover, revenue recognition
includes determination of sales prices in accordance
with the regulated price regime of the Government.

Based on the above and considering that the revenue
recognition is a high-risk area, we considered this
as a key audit matter.

Impairment assessment of investment in
subsidiary

(Refer note 3.12.2 & 7 to the unconsolidated
financial statements)

As per the requirements of accounting and reporting
standards, management assessed whether there is
any indication that investment in subsidiary may
be impaired.

41

Our audit procedures included the following:

obtained an understanding of the Company's
process with respect to revenue recognition and
tested design and operating effectiveness of controls
relevant to such process;

obtained an understanding of pricing mechanism
of Drug Regulatory Authority of Pakistan (DRAP)
and tested, on sample basis, selling prices of
regulated pharmaceutical products to ensure
compliance with the pricing policies of DRAP;

inspected contracts to obtain an understanding of
contract terms particularly relating to timing of
transfer of control of goods and assessing the
Company's accounting policies for recognition of
revenue with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

performed substantive audit procedures over
revenue transactions along with review of related
supporting documents, on test basis;

Performedperformed cut-off procedures to ensure
that the revenue is recognised in the correct
accounting period; and

ensured that presentation and disclosures related
to revenue are being addressed appropriately.

Our audit procedures included the following:

considered indicators requiring management to
carry out impairment assessment;
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S. No.

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

In view of impairment indicators, management
performed an impairment assessment to estimate
the recoverable amount of Company's investments
in related subsidiary (Misbah Cosmetics (Private)
Limited). The assessment involved estimation of
future cash flows of related subsidiary and
determination of recoverable amount using a
number of assumptions and estimates. Based on
such assessment, the Company concluded that no
impairment was required as at June 30, 2024.

As impairment assessment requires management
to make projections of cashflows, use judgement
and estimates, we considered this a key audit

obtained understanding of the management's
process of assessment, including methodology and
key assumptions used to estimate recoverable
amount of investment in subsidiary;

evaluated the reasonableness of key assumptions
and estimates used by management to prepare cash
flow projections and determined the recoverable
amounts. For this purpose, we involved our internal
specialists, where required; and

assessed the adequacy of disclosures made in the
unconsolidated financial statements in accordance
with the applicable accounting and financial

matter. reporting framework.

Information Other than the Unconsolidated and Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's
Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the directors' report but does not include the unconsolidated and consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's reports thereon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the unconsolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

43




Annual Report

2024 Macter International Limited

L

pwec

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

A'FFERGUSON ¢:CoO

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017

(XIX of 2017);

(b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss,
the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes
in equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been
drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with

the books of account and returns;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the

purpose of the Company's business; and

(d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted
by the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

Other Matter

These unconsolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023, were audited
by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on September 26, 2023.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Azhar Hussain.

ﬁ????ﬁwm‘ gc.,

A. F. Ferguson & Co
Chartered Accountants

Karachi
Date : October 04, 2024

UDIN: AR202410290gMWulsnlD
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2024
ASSETS Note
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 4
Intangible assets 6
Long-term investment 7
Long-term loans 8
Long-term deposits 9
Deferred taxation - net 10
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares
Stock-in-trade 11
Trade debts 12
Loans and advances 13
Trade deposits, prepayments and other receivables 14
Sales tax refundable 15
Taxation - net 16
Cash and bank balances 17
TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 18
Capital reserve
Revenue reserve - accumulated profit
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred liabilities 19
Long-term financing 20
Lease liabilities 5
Long term provision 21
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 22
Current portion of long-term financing 20
Current portion of lease liabilities 5
Current portion of long term provision 21
Unclaimed dividend
TOTAL LIABILITIES
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 23

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

2024

2,067,234
2,064
300,000
1,829
73,183

14,052

2,458,362

18,114
1,971,962
389,899
229,886
91,205
9,626
59,806
184,251
2,954,749
5,413,111

458,111
1,225,860

1,513,138

3,197,109

256,080
321,887
85,862

663,829

1,339,338
99,247
27,554
85,484

550

1,552,173

2,216,002

5,413,111

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these un-consolidated financial statements.

jo P

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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2023

2,052,470
1,531
300,000
1,930
58,165
357
2,414,453

18,812
1,776,163
382,862
140,183
81,465
38,712
16,373
54,382
2,508,952
4,923,405

458,111
1,225,860
1,186,722
2,870,693

221,633
279,056
122,712

1,784
625,185

1,261,029
73,265
20,654
71,122

1,457

1,427,527

2,052,712

4,923,405

_ DIRECTOR
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Revenue from contracts with customers

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling and Distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Charge on loss allowance on trade debts and trade deposits
Other expenses

Other income

Operating profit
Finance cost

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense
Profit after taxation

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

Note

24

25

26

27

12.28&14.1

28

29

30

31

32

2024

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these un-consolidated financial statements.
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2023

7,535,382 6,680,391
(4,353,751) (3,895,678)
3,181,631 2,784,713
(1,966,770) (1,780,759)
(505,089) (376,795)
(13,923) (35,873)
(52,983) (52,537)
69,806 79,457
(2,468,959) (2,166,507)
712,672 618,206
(100,573) (61,371)

612,099 556,835
(184,936) (163,967)
427,163 392,868

9.32 8.58

_J DIRECTOR




Annual Report

Macter International Limited 2024

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023

Profit after taxation 427,163 392,868
Other comprehensive loss:
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Actuarial loss on remeasurement of
defined benefit plans — net of deferred tax (18,745) (4,076)
Total comprehensive income for the year 408,418 388,792

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these un-consolidated financial statements.

il P

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE ) DIRECTOR
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Issued, Reserves

subscribed Capital

and paid-up | reserves |REVENUe reserves Total Total
sha{el Share Accumulated reserves
capita Premium profit

(Rupees in '000)

Balance as at July 01, 2022 458,111 1,225,860 891,385 2,117,245 2,575,356
Profit after taxation - - 392,868 392,868 392,868
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - (4,076) (4,076) (4,076)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 388,792 388,792 388,792

Final cash dividend @ Rs. 1.50 per share
for the year ended June 30, 2022 - - (68,717) (68,717) (68,717)

Interim cash dividend @ Rs. 0.54 per
share for the half year ended

December 31, 2022 - - (24,738) (24,738) (24,738)
Balance as at June 30, 2023 458,111 1,225,860 1,186,722 2,412,582 2,870,693
Balance as at July 01, 2023 458,111 1,225,860 1,186,722 2,412,582 2,870,693
Profit after taxation - - 427,163 427,163 427,163
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - (18,745) (18,745) (18,745)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 408,418 408,418 408,418
Final cash dividend @ Rs. 0.54 per
share for the year ended June 30, 2023 - - (24,738) (24,738) (24,738)
Interim cash dividend @ Rs. 1.25 per
share for the year ended June 30, 2024 - - (57,264) (57,264) (57,264)
Balance as at June 30, 2024 458,111 1,225,860 1,513,138 2,738,998 3,197,109

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these un-consolidated financial statements.

o S

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE ) DIRECTOR
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023

Note - (Rupees in '000) ----------

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 33 761,609 353,886
Financial charges paid (91,641) (50,000)
Income tax paid (230,079) (154,796)
Gratuity paid (32,772) (27,018)
Receipts from long-term loans 101 52
Long-term deposits paid (15,018) (33,554)
Advance received against motor vehicles 245 676
(369,164) (264,640)
Net cash generated from operating activities 392,445 89,246

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant & equipment (295,975) (433,711)
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 4.2 78,091 62,937
Additions to intangible assets (1,553) (918)
Short-term investment made - (40,000)
Proceeds from disposal of short-term investment - 199,707
Dividend income on mutual fund units - 7,643
Net cash used in investing activities (219,437) (204,342)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid (82,002) (93,393)
Long-term financing obtained 159,514 219,501
long term financing repaid (90,701) (143,803)
Principal portion of lease liabilities paid (29,950) (25,555)
Net cash used in financing activities (43,139) (43,250)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent 129,869 (158,346)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 54,382 212,728
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 17 184,251 54,382

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these un-consolidated financial statements.

¥ P ’

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE \_J DIRECTOR
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

11

Macter International Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan in 1992 as a private limited
company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and was converted
into a public limited company in 2011. Effective from August 01, 2017 the Company has been listed on
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

1.1.1The geographical locations and addresses of the Company's business units, including plants are as under:

- The Company's manufacturing plants are located at F-216, S.I.T.E., Karachi and E-40/A, S.I.T.E.; Karachi,

- The Company's commercial office is located at Bungalow No # 44-H, PECHS Block 6, Karachi and House
No # NA-300, New Town, Nawaz Sharif Park, Rawalpindi; and

- The warehouse of the Company is situated at Plot No # F-217 & 217-A S.I.T.E., Karachi.

1.2 The principal activity of the Company is to manufacture and market pharmaceutical products. The registered
office of the company is situated at F-216 S.I.T.E., Karachi.
1.3 These unconsolidated financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company in which
investment in subsidiary has been accounted for at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of compliance
These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan
comprise of:
- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act);
- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(ICAP) as are notified under the Act; and
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.
Where provisions of and directives issued under the IFAS and the Act differ from IFRS, the provisions of
and directives issued under the IFAS and the Act have been followed.
2.2 Functional and presentation currency

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency and figures are rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees.
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Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements
(a) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective

There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which
are mandatory for the Company's annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2023. However,
these do not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting.

(b) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

There are certain new standards and amendments that will be applicable to the Company for its
annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2024. The new standards include IFRS 18 Presentation
and Disclosure in Financial Statements (published in April 2024) and IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without
Public Accountability: Disclosures (published in May 2024) both with applicability date of January 1,
2027 as per IASB. The Company’s management at present is in the process of assessing the full impacts
of these new standards and is expecting to complete the assessment in due course. The amendments,
however, are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial reporting and,
therefore, have not been disclosed in these unconsolidated financial statements.

Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting
standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires the management to make judgement, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities
and accompanying disclosures.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgements about
the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and
judgements which are significant to the unconsolidated financial statements:

Notes
- Property, plant and equipment 3.1&3.12
- Stockin trade 3.5
- Impairment of financial & non-financial assets 3.12
- Taxation 3.24
- Employee retirement benefits 3.13
- Lease Liability and Right-of-use assets 3.2
- Contingencies 3.18
- Assets and liabilities arising from rights of return 3.20
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The summary of material accounting policies and methods of computations adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements are as follows:

3.1

3.2

Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any, except for leasehold
land which are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance method at the
rates specified in note 4.1 to the unconsolidated financial statements. Depreciation on additions is charged
from the month asset is available for use and in case of disposal upto the preceding month of disposal.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals
and improvements are capitalized when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

Gains or losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment, if any, are recognized in unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The assets residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate,
at each financial year end.

Capital work-in-progress

These are stated at cost less impairment, if any, and represent expenditures incurred and advances made
in respect of specific assets during the construction / installation year. These are transferred to relevant
operating fixed assets as and when assets are available for use.

Lease liability and Right-of-use assets

The Company, as a lessee, has recognised right-of-use assets representing its right to use the underlying
assets and lease liabilities representing its obligations to make lease payments.

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
The Company mainly leases properties for its operations. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and
lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and
subsequently at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for
certain remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line
method over the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets
are determined on the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically
reduced by impairment losses, if any.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with
similar terms and conditions. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease
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liability and decreased by lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option
is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit
and loss if the carrying amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

- Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

- Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

- Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

- The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

- Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

- The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

- Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

- Any initial direct costs; and

- Dismantling costs and restoration costs.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of
properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Investment in subsidiary

Investments in subsidiary companies are initially recognised at cost. At subsequent reporting dates, the
recoverable amounts are estimated to determine the extent of impairment losses, if any, and carrying
amounts of investments are adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses are recognised as expense. Where
impairment losses subsequently reverse, the carrying amounts of the investments are increased to the

revised recoverable amounts but limited to the extent of initial cost of investments.

A reversal of impairment loss is recognised in unconsolidated profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Stores and spares

These are valued at lower of moving average cost and estimated net realizable value (NRV), less provision
for obsolete items (if any), except items in-transit, if any, are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus
other charges incurred thereon up to the date of statement of financial position.

Provision, if required is made in the financial statements for slow moving, obsolete and unusable items.

Stores and spares are assessed and provision is applied according to degree of ageing based on a specific
criteria.
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3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Stock-in-trade

These are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined as follows:

- Raw and packing material - on moving average basis.

- Finished goods and - at weighted average cost of purchases and
work-in-process applicable manufacturing expenses.

- Stock-in-transit - Valued at cost comprising invoice value plus

other charges paid thereon up to the reporting date.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Provision is recorded for slow moving
and expired stock where necessary.

Trade debts

These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured
at fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit
loss.

Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

These are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.

Exchange gains or losses arising in respect of deposits, advances and other receivables denominated in
foreign currencies are adjusted to their respective carrying amounts and charged to unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss, if any.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost / amortised cost. For
the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of bank balances in current,
savings and deposit accounts, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of upto
three months, short-term borrowings under running finance and book overdraft which are payable on
demand, if any. The cash and cash equivalents are readily convertible to known amount of cash and are
therefore subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value. Incremental costs directly

attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

3.10 Share premium

It represents the difference between the par value of the Company's ordinary shares and the total amount
of money a company receives for ordinary shares issued.
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3.11 Financial instruments
3.11.1 Initial measurement of financial asset
The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:
- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
- atamortised cost.

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition.

Subsequent measurement

Debt Investments These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income

at FVOCI calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income. On
de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Equity Investments These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised

at FVOCI as income in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified
to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
FVTPL including any interest / markup or dividend income, are recognised in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
measured at interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any.
amortised cost Interest / markup income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment, if

any, are recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.
3.11.2 Financial assets

All financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party
to the respective contractual provisions. Financial assets comprise loans and receivables that are financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets and include trade debts,
deposits, advances and cash and cash equivalents. The Company derecognises the financial assets when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and rewards of ownership of
the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset.
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3.11.3

3.11.4

3.12

3.12.1

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party
to the respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings,
unclaimed / unpaid dividend, accrued mark-up, lease liability and trade and other payables. The Company
derecognises the financial liabilities when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.
Financial liabilities other than at fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less
any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured
at amortised cost using effective interest rate method.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial
statements only when the Company has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised
amounts and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and to settle
the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding
up of the Company or the counter parties.

Impairment
Financial Assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) in respect of financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following,
which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balance for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade debts are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 - 48 months
before June 30, 2024 or July 1, 2023 respectively and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced
within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the debts. The Company has
identified the Gross Domestic Product (GDP) and the inflation rate of the countries in which it sells its
goods to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected
changes in these factors.

The Company considers a financial asset to be at a risk of default when contractual payments are 90
days past due except for receivables from institutions for which it is considered as 1440 days, unless
there are factors that might indicate otherwise. However, in certain cases, the Company may also
consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the
Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account
any credit enhancements held by the Company.
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When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience, informed credit assessment
and forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more
than past due for a reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs
that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a
shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed
to credit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovery of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually
makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a
reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the amount
written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities
in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

The adoption of the expected loss approach has not resulted in any material change in impairment
provision for any financial asset.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, other than stores and spares and stock
in trade are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
If such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount, being higher of value in use and fair value less
costs to sell, is estimated. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that
cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
groups of assets. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Employee retirement benefits
Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all eligible permanent employees.
Provision is made on the basis of actuarial recommendations. The latest actuarial valuation is carried
out as at June 30, 2024 using the Project Unit Credit Method.

An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments
in the future. These includes the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality
rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.
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3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

Defined contribution plan

The Company operates a provident fund plan for all permanent management employees. Contribution
is made to the fund equally by the Company and the employees at the rate of 8.33% of basic and / or
gross salary, as per the respective entitlement grades.

Trade and Other Payable

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a
contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liability are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Unclaimed dividend

Dividend declared and payable from the unconsolidated statement of financial position date are
recognised as unclaimed dividend.

Provision

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingencies

Contingencies are disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity or a present obligation that arises
from past events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

Revenue recognition

The Company recognises revenue from sale of goods at a point in time when control of goods is
transferred to customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods. Control, depending on contractual terms, is considered to
be transferred either when the product is directly uplifted by customer from factory premises or when
it is delivered by the Company at customer premises.

The Company generally enters into an agreement with its customers for supply of its products, including
delivery of product. As the transportation of product coincides with actual delivery, sale of product and
transportation is considered single performance obligation. The credit limits in contract with customers
varies depending on the terms of specific contract.
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Income from toll manufacturing is recognised at a point in time when services are rendered.
Assets and liabilities arising from rights of return
Right of return assets

Right of return asset represents the Company’s right to recover the goods expected to be returned by
customers. The asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected
costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in the value of the returned goods. The
Company updates the measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions to its expected level of
returns, as well as any additional decreases in the value of the returned products. Returns for the
Company comprise of expired products or near expiry products.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable)
from the customer and is measured at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to return
to the customer. The Company updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change
in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.

Other income

Other income is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the income can be measured reliably. Other income is measured on the following basis:

- Return on short-term deposits and investments at amortised cost are accounted for using the
effective interest rate method.

- Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

- Scrap sales are recognized on accrual basis.

Foreign currency translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the foreign exchange rate
prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at the statement of financial position date are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the foreign exchange
rate prevailing at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translations at the year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.
ljarah lease rentals

Leases under Shariah compliant ljarah contracts, where significant portion of the risk and reward of
ownership is retained by the lesser, are classified as ljarah. Rentals under these arrangements are

charged to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss on straight line basis over the lease term.

ljarah rentals directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset are capitalized as part
of the cost of the respective assets.
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3.24

3.25

Taxation
Current

The current income tax charge is based on the taxable income for the year calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the
statement of profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, while deferred tax assets
are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credit and unused tax losses can be
utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the assets are realized or the liabilities are settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or subsequently enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to
statement of profit or loss except to the extent it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive
income.

Levies

Tax charged under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which is not based on taxable income or any amount
paid / payable in excess of the calculation based on taxable income or any minimum tax which is not
adjustable against future income tax liability is classified as levy in the unconsolidated statement of
profit or loss as these levies fall under the scope of IFRIC 21 / IAS 37.

Tax on dividend from subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are not considered as levy as these
dividends are specifically covered by IAS 12.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which
the dividends are approved. However, if these are approved after the reporting period but before the

financial statements are authorised for issue, disclosure is made in the unconsolidated financial
statements.
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3.26 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earning per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.27 Segment reporting

The activities of the Company are organised into one operating segment i.e., manufacturing and
marketing of pharmaceutical products. The Company operates in the said reportable operating segment
based on nature of the product, risks and returns, organizational and management structure, and
internal financial reporting system. Accordingly, the figures reported in the unconsolidated financial
statements are related to the Company's only reportable segment.

2024 2023
Note - (Rupees in '000) ----------
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets 4.1 1,739,779 1,818,570
Capital work-in-progress 4.5 231,320 99,501
Right-of-use assets 4.6 96,135 134,399
2,067,234 2,052,470
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4.4 Depreciation charge for the year on operating fixed assets has been allocated as follows:

4.5

4.6

Cost of sales
Selling and Distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Capital work-in-progress

Balance at the beginning of the year
Capital expenditure incurred / advances made
Advances refunded / reclassified
Transfer to operating fixed assets
including advances adjusted
Balance at the end of the year

Balance at the beginning of the year

Capital expenditure incurred / advances made

Transfer to operating fixed assets including
advances adjusted

Balance at the end of the year

Right-of-use assets

As at July 01,

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Year ended June 30,

Opening net book value

Additions during the year
Reassessment of lease during the year

Termination of lease during the year
- Cost
- Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation for the year
Closing net book value

As at June 30,

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value
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2024 2023
Note ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
25 116,742 99,089
26 77,612 53,801
27 20,827 20,968
215,181 173,858
2024
Building on Plant and
Leasehold land machinery Others Total
(Rupees in '000) -------------=-numn---
38,593 807 60,101 99,501
19,396 145,579 157,953 322,928
(3,691) - (25,820) (29,511)
(45,071) (4,674)  (111,853) (161,598)
9,227 141,712 80,381 231,320
2023
Building on Plant and
Leasehold land machinery Others Total
---------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------mmommomm
15,068 7,544 179,563 202,175
46,857 16,539 337,812 401,208
(23,332) (23,276) (457,274) (503,882)
38,593 807 60,101 99,501
2024 2023
Note ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
211,040 136,091
(76,641) (80,287)
134,399 55,804
134,399 55,804
- 91,479
- 42,220
- (58,750)
- 33,676
. (25,074)
4.6.1 (38,264) (30,030)
96,135 134,399
211,040 211,040
(114,905) (76,641)
96,135 134,399
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4.6.1Depreciation charge for the year on right-of-use
assets has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales
Selling and Distribution expenses

25
26

2024

7,444
30,820

38,264

2023

5,992
24,038

30,030

4.6.2Right-of-use assets comprise of lease arrangements for premises utilised as office building and warehouse.

4.6.3The right-of-use assets are depreciated over a life of 3 - 5 years.

5. LEASES
5.1 LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities
Current portion of lease liabilities

5.1.1Reconciliation of the carrying amount is as follows:

Lease liabilities at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year

Reassessment of lease during the year
Termination of lease during the year
Accretion of interest

Lease rental payments made during the year
Lease liabilities at the end of the year
Current portion of lease liabilities

Non current portion of lease liabilities

30

2024

113,416
(27,554)

85,862

143,366

13,574
(43,524)

113,416

(27,554)

85,862

2023

143,366
(20,654)

122,712

67,163
91,479
42,220

(31,941)
11,295

(36,850)

143,366

(20,654)

122,712

5.1.2The amount of future payments under the lease arrangement and the period in which these payments will

become due are as follows:

Gross lease liabilities - minimum lease payments:

Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years

Future finance charge
Present value of finance lease liabilities
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2024

46,366
105,953

152,319

(38,903)

113,416

2023

44,350
157,793

202,143

(58,777)

143,366
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6.1

7.1

Macter International Limited

2024

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Cost Accumulated Amortisation
As at Additions As at Asat Charge Asat Net book Amortisation
2024 July 01, during the June 30, July01, forthe June30, valueasat rate % per
2023 year 2024 2023 year 2024 June 30,2024 annum
(Rupees in '000)
Software licenses 24,724 1,553 26,277 23,193 1,020 24,213 2,064 20-33.33%
SAP ERP 41,802 - 41,802 41,802 - 41,802 - 20%
Manufacturing and
distribution rights 20,000 - 20,000 20,000 - 20,000 - 20%
2024 86,526 1,553 88,079 84,995 1,020 86,015 2,064
Cost Accumulated Amortisation
As at Additions As at Asat Charge AsatJune  Netbook Amortization
2023 July 01, during the June 30, July 01, forthe 30,2023 valueasat rate % per
2022 year 2023 2022 year June 30,2023  annum
(Rupees in '000)
Software licenses 23,806 918 24,724 21,505 1,688 23,193 1,531 20-33.33%
SAP ERP 41,802 - 41,802 41,802 - 41,802 - 20%
Manufacturing and
distribution rights 20,000 - 20,000 20,000 - 20,000 - 20%
2023 85,608 918 86,526 83,307 1,688 84,995 1,531
2024 2023
Note  -------—-- (Rupees in '000) ----------
Amortisation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 25 577 725
Administrative expenses 27 443 963
1,020 1,688
LONG-TERM INVESTMENT
Investment in subsidiary - at cost
Misbah Cosmetics (Private) Limited
Equity held: 79.84% (2023: 79.84%)
No. of shares: 30,000,000 (2023: 30,000,000)
of Rs.10 each 7.1

300,000

300,000

The subsidiary company is engaged in selling and distribution of cosmetics products.

The subsidiary Company has incurred significant losses in prior years resulting in net equity position of Rs. 37.95
million which is less than the cost of investment (after adjustment of accumulated losses of 337.81 million)
based on the financial statement for the year ended June 30, 2024.The Company considered this as an idicator
of impairment accordingly the Company carried out an assessment for the recoverable amount of its investment
in subsidiary. The assessment involved estimation of future cash flows of subsidiary and determination of
recoverable amount using the number of assumptions and estimates. Based on such assessment, no impairment

loss was required as at June 30, 2024.

67




Annual Report

2024 Macter International Limited

2024 2023
Note ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
8. LONG-TERM LOANS - secured, considered good
Due from:

- Executives 677 511
- Other employees 5,051 5,098
8.1 5,728 5,609

Less: Current portion
- Executives (133) (59)
- Other employees (3,766) (3,620)
13 (3,899) (3,679)
1,829 1,930

8.1 These represent mark-up free loans to executives and employees for purchase of motor cars, motor cycles,
house building, umrah and others, in accordance with the Company’s policy. These loans are secured against
the final settlement of respective employees and are recoverable in monthly installments over a period of one
month to one hundred and thirteen months, these loans are secured against retirement benefits of respective
employees.

Long-term loans have been carried at cost as the effect of carrying these balances at amortised cost would not
be material in the overall context of these unconsolidated financial statements.

2024 2023
9. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS e (Rupees in '000) ----------
Diminishing musharakah 57,277 42,843
Utilities 11,601 11,017
Rent 4,305 4,305
73,183 58,165

10. DEFERRED TAXATION - NET

Accelerated Right of Provision Provision Provision Provision Total

tax use of for for for for slow
depreciation assetand gratuity doubtful trade moving and
lease payable receivables deposits obsolete items
liability
(Rupees in '000)

Balance at July 01, 2023 (178,125) 3,156 74,000 48,563 8,994 43,769 357
Charge / (credit) to

profit or loss (12,745) 3,584 12,848 (4,618) 3,933 (1,292) 1,710
Charge to other comprehensive

income for the year - - 11,985 - - - 11,985
Balance at June 30, 2024 (190,870) 6,740 98,833 43,945 12,927 42,477 14,052
Balance at July 01, 2022 (138,320) 3,500 64,059 34,302 - 30,779 (5,680)
Charge / (credit) to

profit or loss (39,805) (344) 4,369 14,261 8,994 12,990 465
Charge to other comprehensive

income for the year - - 5,572 - - - 5,572
Balance at June 30, 2023 (178,125) 3,156 74,000 48,563 8,994 43,769 357
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10.1 The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction, and the law
allows net settlement. Therefore, they have been offset in the unconsolidated statement of financial position.

10.2 Deferred tax asset / (liability) is recorded at 100% (2023:92.02%) of the total deferred tax liability based on the
changes in Finance Act, 2024, according to which export sales will not be treated under Final Tax Regime, instead
the export sales will now fall under Minimum Tax Regime.

10.3 Under the Finance Act, 2019, corporate rate of tax has been fixed at 29% for tax year 2020 and onwards. As per
Finance Act, 2022, companies operating in certain sectors, including pharmaceutical sector, are liable to pay
super tax at 10% for tax year 2022 and upto 4% for tax year 2023 and onwards. However Finance Act, 2023 has
introduced progressive rate on high earning persons ranging from 1% to 10% whereas on companies having
income in excess of Rs. 500 million 10% super tax will be applicable. Such higher rate of tax has been made
perpetual thus substantially increasing the overall tax costs for the businesses. Accordingly, deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been recognised using the expected applicable rate.

2024 2023

11. STOCK-IN-TRADE Note ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
In hand

- raw materials 11.2 881,269 840,094

- packing materials 11.2 264,295 271,087

- work-in-process 214,700 158,131

- finished goods 11.3 583,087 627,565

1,943,351 1,896,877

Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete items 11.4 (108,916) (124,383)

1,834,435 1,772,494

In transit 115 137,527 3,669

1,971,962 1,776,163

11.1 As at June 30, 2024, stock of finished products has been written down by Rs. 9.19 million (2023: Rs. 3.50 million)
to arrive at its net realisable value of Rs. 37.30 million (2023: Rs. 28.85 million).

11.2 These Include raw material and packaging material held by third party amounting to Rs. 48.64 million (2023
Rs. Nil) and Rs. 9.23 million (2023 Rs. Nil) respectively.

11.3 Finished goods includes right of return assets amounting to Rs. 38.29 million (2023: Rs.44.28 million).

2024 2023
Note  -------—-- (Rupees in '000) ----------
11.4 Provision for slow moving and obsolete items
Balance at the beginning of the year 124,383 99,909
Charge for the year 25 49,593 110,545
Write off during the year (65,060) (86,071)
Balance at the end of the year 108,916 124,383

11.5 Stock in transit includes raw material of Rs. 102.78 million (2023: Rs.3.61 million) and packing material of Rs.
27.44 million (2023: Rs. 0.05 million).
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2024 2023

Note  -------—-- (Rupees in '000) ----------
12. TRADE DEBTS - unsecured

Considered good 12.1 389,899 382,862
Considered doubtful 112,680 138,005
502,579 520,867
Allowance for expected credit loss 12.2 (112,680) (138,005)
389,899 382,862

12.1 These trade debts include Rs. 22.76 million (2023: Rs. 38.65 million) representing receivable against export sales
to Africa and Asia amounting to Rs. 0.61 million (2023: Rs. 0.61 million) and Rs. 22.15 million (2023: Rs. 38.04
million), respectively.

2024 2023
12.2 Allowance for expected creditloss e (Rupees in '000) ----------
The movement in expected credit loss during the year is as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year 138,005 111,346
Provision recognised during the year 5,843 26,659
Write offs during the year (31,168) -
(25,325) 26,659
Balance at the end of the year 112,680 138,005
12.3 The aging of trade debts at the statement of financial position date was:
2024
Not past 30 days 31-90 90-180 181 to over Total
due days days 360 days 360 days
(Rupees in '000)
Total gross
carrying amount 253,356 5,774 51,150 7,252 31,443 153,604 502,579
Expected credit loss - 124 923 7,061 7,599 96,973 112,680
2023
Not past 30 days 31-90 90-180 181 to over Total
due days days 360 days 360 days
(Rupees in '000)
Total gross
carrying amount 155,444 80,434 17,168 24,489 71,998 171,334 520,867
Expected credit loss - - - 405 14,298 123,302 138,005
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13. LOANS AND ADVANCES - considered good

Current portion of long-term loans
Advances to:

- employees

- suppliers

Macter International Limited 2024
2024 2023
Note  -------—-- (Rupees in '000) ----------
8 3,899 3,679
13.1 24,448 22,926
13.2 201,539 113,578
225,987 136,504
229,886 140,183

13.1 Advances to employees are provided to meet business expenses and are settled as and when the expenses are

incurred.

13.2 This includes interest free advances to major foreign suppliers having maturity latest by September 2024.

Jurisdiction

Asia

Europe

Name

Zhejiang Jingxin Pharmaceuticals
Shijianzhuang Lonzeal Pharmaceutical
Echemi Global Co, Limited

Shandong Wego Prefills

Meggle Gmbh & Co., Kg

Syntegon Technology Services Ag

14. TRADE DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Deposits
Margin against bank guarantees

Tender deposits
Provision for doubtful deposits

Others

Prepayments
Software license
Takaful
Machine and equipments
Fees, rates and taxes

Other receivables
Profit on saving accounts
Margin against Letter of credits
Others

2024 2023
Note ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
36,665 27,025
77,853 74,877
14.1 (33,143) (25,563)
44,710 49,314
380 -
81,755 76,339
920 1,057
- 1,565
- 28
- 1,135
920 3,785
1,450 491
6,575 -
1,335 850
9,360 1,341
91,205 81,465
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14.1

15.

2024 Macter International Limited

2024 2023

Provision for doubtful deposits

The movement in provision for doubtful deposits during the year is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year 25,563 16,349
Provision recognised during the year 8,080 9,214
Write offs during the year (500) -
Balance at the end of the year 33,143 25,563
SALES TAX REFUNDABLE

"The entire pharma sector was exempt from levy of sales tax both at input as well as output stage, except for
certain excipient and packing materials but through Finance (Supplementary) Act, 2021 exemption regime was
converted into a Zero-rating regime for finished items of pharma products with effective from January 17,
2022, however, sales tax was imposed at standard rate of 17% on purchase / import of Active Pharmaceutical
Ingredients (API). As a result, the pharma sector was allowed to claim sales tax refund on all purchases including
APIs, excipient and packing materials on consumption basis.

Moreover, aforesaid law has further been amended through the Finance Act, 2022 with effect from July 01,
2022, a special tax regime for Pharma Sector has been introduced whereby manufacture or import of substances
registered as drugs under the Drugs Act, 1976 shall be subject to 1% sales tax with the condition that such tax
shall be final discharge of tax in the supply chain and no input tax shall be allowed to the importer and
manufacturer of such goods. Furthermore, APls, excluding excipients, for manufacture of drugs registered
under the Drugs Act, 1976 or raw materials for the basic manufacture of Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients
shall also be subject to 1% sales tax with no input tax adjustment.

In this respect net Rs. 16.52 million (2023: Rs. 38.71 million) is sales tax input paid on purchases / import of
materials which is refundable on consumption basis.

2024 2023

16. TAXATION - NET

Tax receivable at the beginning of the year 16,373 26,008
Tax payments / adjustment made during the year 228,369 154,332

244,742 180,340
Less: provision for tax- current (184,936) (163,967)
Tax receivable at the end of the year 59,806 16,373
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2024 2023
17.  CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note oo (Rupees in '000) -------
Cash in hand - -
Cash at bank
Conventional Bank:
- current account in local currency 1,902 6,917
Islamic Banks:
- current account 5,330 1,466
- saving accounts in local currency 17.1 176,469 44,542
- dividend accounts in local currency 550 1,457
184,251 54,382
184,251 54,382
17.1 These carry profit at the rates ranging from 11.01% to 19.00% (2023: 3.25% to 10.25%) per annum.
18. SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized share capital
2024 2023 2024 2023
----- Number of shares ----- ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
65,000,000 65,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 650,000 650,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
2024 2023 2024 2023
----- Number of shares ----- ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
8,430,868 8,430,868 Fully paid ordinary shares of 84,309 84,309
Rs.10 each Issued for cash
30,489,649 30,489,649 Fully paid ordinary shares of 304,897 304,897
Rs.10 each Issued as fully paid
bonus shares
223,834 223,834 Fully paid ordinary shares of 2,238 2,238
Rs.10 each Issued pursuant to
merger with Associated
Services Limited
6,666,667 6,666,667 Fully paid ordinary shares of 66,667 66,667
Rs.10 each Issues as fully paid
right shares
45,811,018 45,811,018 458,111 458,111
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18.1

19.

19.1

2024 Macter International Limited

All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. Holders of these shares are
entitled to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings
of the Company.

2024 2023
Note  ----oeom- (Rupees in '000) ----------
DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Advance against motor vehicles 2,661 2,416
Employees' gratuity payable 19.1 253,419 219,217
256,080 221,633

Defined benefit plan - unfunded gratuity scheme

19.1.1 In accordance with the requirements of IAS-19 "Employee Benefits", actuarial valuation was carried out as at

June 30, 2024, using the "Projected Unit Credit Method". Provision has been made in these unconsolidated
financial statements to cover obligation in accordance with the actuarial recommendations.

19.1.2 Risks on account of defined benefit plan

Final salary risk

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what the Company has assumed.
Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount would increase proportionately also.

Discount rate fluctuation

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to market yields (at the
statement of financial position date) on government bond. A decrease in government bond yields will increase
plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the current plans’ bond
holdings.

Withdrawal risk

The risk that the actual withdrawal experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability. The significance
of the withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and entitled benefits of the beneficiary.

Inflation fluctuation

The salary inflation is the major risk that the funds carry. In a general economic sense and in a longer view,
there is a case that if bond yields increase, the change in salary inflation generally offsets the gains from the
decrease in discounted benefit obligations. But viewed with the fact that the plan have no asset, the impact
of salary inflation might be significant.

Mortality risk

The risk that the actual mortality experience is different. The effect depends on the beneficiaries’ service/age
distribution and the benefit.

74




Annual Report

Macter International Limited 2024

The number of employees covered under
the defined benefit scheme are:

The following principal actuarial assumptions were used
for the valuation of above mentioned scheme:

Financial assumptions
- Discount rate (per annum compounded)
- Salary increase per annum

Demographic assumptions
- Normal retirement
- Mortality rate

19.1.3 Liability in balance sheet

Present value of defined benefit obligations

19.1.4 Movement in liability during the year

Balance at the beginning of the year

Charged to profit or loss

Benefits paid during the year

Actuarial loss recognised in other comprehensive income
Balance at the end of the year

19.1.5 Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligations

Present value of defined benefit obligations as at July 01
Current service cost

Finance cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial loss on obligations

Present value of defined benefit obligations as at June 30
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2024 2023

--- Number of Employees ---

354 375
14.50% 15.50%
14.50% 15.50%

60 years 60 years
EFU (61-66) EFU (61-66)
2024 2023

253,419 219,217
219,217 207,938
36,244 28,649
(32,772) (27,018)
30,730 9,648
253,419 219,217
219,217 207,938
6,174 5,191
30,070 23,458
(32,772) (27,018)
30,730 9,648

253,419 219,217
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2024 2023
19.1.6 Charge for the defined benefit plan

Cost recognised in profit or loss

Current service cost 6,174 5,191
Finance cost 30,070 23,458
36,244 28,649

Actuarial loss on defined benefit obligations
recognised in other comprehensive income

Actuarial loss on defined benefit obligations

- Loss due to change in experience adjustments 30,730 9,648
Expected benefit payments to retirees in the following year 19,199 21,084
Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligations (year) 8.10 7.50

19.1.7 Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis has been performed by varying one assumption keeping all other assumptions constant
and calculating the impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligations on various employee benefit
schemes. The increase / (decrease) in the present value of defined benefit obligations as a result of change
in each assumption is summarized below:

2024 2023

Increase in discount rate by 1% (16,381) (12,744)
Decrease in discount rate by 1% 18,419 14,309
Increase in expected future increment in salary by 1% 18,250 14,178
Decrease in expected future increment in salary by 1% 16,517 (12,849)

19.1.8 Maturity Profile

Year 1 19,199 21,084
Year 2 28,765 21,546
Year 3 30,433 26,737
Year 4 29,251 26,323
Year 5 38,859 25,389
Year 6 and onwards 206,712 173,016

19.1.9 As per the recommendation of the actuary, the charge for the year ending June 30, 2025 amounts to Rs. 7.88
million.
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19.1.10 Comparison for Five Years

20.

20.1

As at June 30 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
(Rupees in '000)

Defined benefit obligation 253,419 219,217 207,938 207,028 196,286

Experience adjustment
loss / (gain) on obligation
(as percentage of
plan obligations) 12.13% 4.40% -1.52% 0.67% -2.06%

2024 2023

FINANCING
Long-Term Financing

Diminishing musharakah:

- vehicles 20.1.1 421,134 352,321
Less: Current maturity shown under current liabilities (99,247) (73,265)
321,887 279,056

20.1.1 These facilities have been obtained from First Habib Modaraba. These carry mark-up at the rates of 3 Months

20.2

21.

KIBOR + 1.00% to 1.25% (2023: 3 Months KIBOR + 1.00% to 1.25%) per annum and are having maturity till
June 2029 (2023: March 2028). These facilities are secured by way of hypothecation charge over current /
fixed assets of the Company.

Short-Term Borrowing Avalaible
The Company has following short term borrowing facilities available as at year end:

The facilities for running musharakah arrangements with various banks amounted to Rs. 700 million (2023:
Rs. 500 million) all of which remained unutillised at the year end. The rate of mark-up applicable on running
finance is based on one month KIBOR + 0.8% to 1.5% (2023: one month KIBOR + 1% to 1.5%) per annum.

The facilities from Murahaba, Musawamah and Istisna arrangement from various banks amounted to Rs.
3,350 million (2023: Rs. 2,950 million) all of which remained unutilised as at the year end. The rate of markup
applicable is based on respective tenor KIBOR + 0.8% to 1.5% (2023: respective tenor KIBOR + 1% to 1.5%)
per annum.

2024 2023
Note  ---eeooeee (Rupees in '000) ----------
LONG TERM PROVISION
Provision for Gas Infrastructure Development Cess
Provision for gas infrastructure development cess 211 85,484 72,906
Less: Current portion of provision (85,484) (71,122)
- 1,784
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22.2
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This represents Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) against which the Honourable Supreme Court of
Pakistan in its order dated August 13, 2020 held that the same is constitutional. Subsequent to the order, the
SSGCissued GIDC bill under which the total amount would be recovered in forty eight equal monthly installments.

The above demand of the SSGC was not acknowledged as liability by the Company and it filed an appeal before
the Honourable High Court of Sindh (the Court) on the grounds that no burden of GIDC had been passed to
its customers and thus the Company is not liable to pay GIDC under GIDC Act, 2015. Based on the above appeal,
the Court was pleased to grant stay vide order dated September 29, 2020 against the demand raised by the
SSGC and restrained them from take any coercive action.

2024 2023

Note  --eoemmme- (Rupees in '000) ----------

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and other creditors 531,948 575,339
Advances from customers - contract liabilities 413,646 237,481
Refund liability 65,552 75,650
Accrued liabilities 236,052 218,359
Sindh Workers’ Welfare Fund 22.1 12,721 44,817
Payable to provident fund 22.2 12,098 11,430
Withholding taxes payable 15,758 11,402
Sindh Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 22.3 8,477 30,230
Central Research Fund 22.4 6,786 6,046
Auditors' remuneration 4,316 3,603
Accrued profit 2,471 6,117
Others 29,513 40,555
1,339,338 1,261,029

Sindh Workers’ Welfare Fund

This pertains to the provision recorded by the Company on account of Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund. During
the year, the Deputy Commissioner SRB issued a show cause notice dated September 4, 2023, demanding the
Company Rs. 20.74 million along with penalty and default surcharge. In response, the Company submitted
documentary evidences, however the Commissioner raised the same demand through order dated November
4, 2023. The Company challenged the order before the Appeals SRB, however paid the Sindh Workers Welfare
Fund as per the demand.

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the
Act and the rules formulated for this purpose.

2024 2023

Sindh Workers' Profit Participation Fund

Balance at the beginning of the year 30,230 1,591
Mark-up thereon 3,015 66
Charge for the year 33,477 30,230

66,722 31,887
Less: Payments made during the year (58,245) (1,657)
Balance at the end of the year 8,477 30,230
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2024 2023

Central Research Fund

Balance at the beginning of the year 6,046 5,318
Charge for the year 6,785 6,046
12,831 11,364
Less: Payments made during the year (6,045) (5,318)
Balance at the end of the year 6,786 6,046

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

Description of the factual basis of Name of Principle Date
the Name of the Court court Party instituted
proceedings and relief sought

Certain cases have been filed against the Company by National Industrial Employees vs Various dates
some employees against their termination / dismissal, Relations Macter

having exposure of the Company to the extent of Rs.18.03 Commission International

million (2023: Rs.12.62 million). Provision has not been Limited

made in these unconsolidated financial statements for the
said amount as the management of the Company, based
on the advice of its legal counsel handling the subject
cases, is of the opinion that matters shall be decided in
the Company’s favour.

23.1.2 The Additional Commissioner of Inland Revenue (ACIR) raised demands of Rs. 22.43 million, Rs. 51.46 million,

23.2

and Rs. 245 million for the tax years 2015, 2016, and 2017, respectively, through an order under section 122(5A)
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. In this order, the assessing officer added back certain expenses. The
Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Inland Revenue (Appeals). Subsequently, an order was
passed by the CIR (Appeals) dated December 30, 2022, wherein most of the disallowances were remanded
back to the ACIR. Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal. Subsequently,
orders were passed by the Appellate Tribunal dated April 20, 2023, and September 15, 2023, for the tax years
2017, 2015, and 2016, respectively, wherein most of the disallowances were remanded back to the ACIR. The
ACIR issued amended orders on June 11, 2024, with appeal effects, in which most of the disallowances were
reversed, and a demand of Rs. 15.67 million was raised, which was adjusted against available tax refunds from
the relevant years. The adjustment has been appropriately accounted for in these unconsolidated financial
statements.

Commitments

Capital expenditure commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2024 amounted to Rs. 114.32 million (2023: Rs.
13.61 million).

The facilities for opening letters of credit and guarantees as well as shipping guarantee from banks as at June
30, 2024 amounted to Rs. 2,475 million (2023: Rs. 1,700 million), Rs. 275 million (2023: Rs. 150 million) and
Rs. 700 million (2023: Rs.500 million) respectively of which unutilized balance at period end amounted to Rs.
2,022 million (2023: Rs. 1,118 million), Rs. 152 million (2023: Rs. 32 million) and Rs. 700 million (2023: Rs. 500
million) respectively.
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REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Gross Sales
Local
Export

Toll manufacturing

Less: Trade discount
Sales return
Sales tax

Disaggregation of revenue

Sale of goods and services
Toll manufacturing

2024

8,305,994

561,369

8,867,363
60,076

8,927,439

1,156,940
68,384

2023

6,995,531

652,786

7,648,317
57,118

7,705,435

166,733

1,392,057

7,535,382

7,475,907
59,475

7,535,382

822,713
62,572
139,759

1,025,044

6,680,391

6,623,844
56,547

6,680,391

This include sales to government organizations amounting to Rs. 10.15 million (2023: Rs. 366.46 million)

COST OF SALES
Raw and packing materials consumed

Manufacturing overheads
Salaries, wages and benefits
Fuel and power
Depreciation on operating fixed assets
Repairs and maintenance
Provision for slow moving and
obsolete stock-in-trade
Laboratory and factory supplies
Research and development cost
Stores and spares consumed
Rent, rates and taxes
Printing and stationery
Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Travelling, conveyance and entertainment
Takaful
Postage and communication
Amortisation
Training and development cost
Legal and professional
Others

Work-in-process
Opening
Closing
Cost of goods manufactured

Finished goods
Opening
Closing

Physician samples
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25.2

4.4

11.4

4.6.1

6.1

2024 2023
---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
3,281,518 2,997,523

532,642 472,523
256,353 201,959
116,742 99,089
92,599 72,680
49,593 110,545
45,879 52,434
19,418 -
13,332 11,995
12,573 13,991
9,670 10,145
7,444 5,992
6,635 3,350
5,263 4,260
1,998 1,346
577 725
542 151
35 1,103
956 136
1,172,251 1,062,424
4,453,769 4,059,947
158,131 190,105
(214,700 (158,131)
(56,569) 31,974
4,397,200 4,091,921
627,565 484,262
(583,087) (627,565)
44,478 (143,303)
(87,927) (52,940)
4,353,751 3,895,678
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26.

26.1

Raw and packing materials consumed

Opening stock
Purchases

Closing stock

Macter International Limited

2024

1,111,181

3,315,901

4,427,082

(1,145,564)
3,281,518

2024

2023

682,114
3,426,590
4,108,704

(1,111,181)
2,997,523

This includes amount of Rs. 16.3 million (2023: Rs. 14.64 million) and Rs. 26.61 million (2023: Rs. 19.7 million)
in respect of defined contribution and defined benefit plan respectively.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits

Sales promotion expenses

Training and development cost
Freight charges

Depreciation on operating fixed assets
Repair and maintenance

Traveling, conveyance and entertainment
Subscription charges

Depreciation on right-to-use assets
Fuel and power

Takaful

Rent, rate and taxes

Service charges

Postage and communication

Legal and professional

Printing and stationery

26.1

4.4

46.1

2024

1,085,001
339,471
80,688
79,471
77,612
70,362
95,619
35,305
30,820
30,430
12,520
11,660
5,481
4,545
4,467
3,318

1,966,770

2023

1,019,170
287,236
106,563

79,375
53,801
56,186
60,888
37,595
24,038
23,860
8,104
11,574
3,856
4,470
4,043
1,780,759

This includes Rs. 32.38 million (2023: Rs. 29.75 million) and Rs. 5.94 million (2023: Rs. 5.7 million) in respect
of defined contribution and defined benefit plan respectively.
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27.  ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits

Repairs and maintenance

Fuel and power

Legal and professional

Depreciation on operating fixed assets
Rent, rates and taxes

Printing and stationery

Traveling, conveyance and entertainment
Postage and communication

Auditors’ remuneration

Directors' fee

Takaful

Amortisation

Training and development cost

Others

2024 2023
Note ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
27.1 299,960 245,493
82,146 41,540
23,950 19,636
21,621 12,332
4.4 20,827 20,968
13,910 8,367
13,186 8,355
12,744 4,864
5,481 3,523
27.2 4,316 4,086
1,525 3,100
3,508 2,852
6.1 443 963
206 253
1,266 463
505,089 376,795

27.1 This includes amount of Rs.11.88 million (2023: Rs. 9.64 million) and Rs. 3.69 million (2023: Rs. 3.2 million)
in respect of defined contribution and defined benefit plan respectively.

27.2 Auditors’ remuneration

Annual audit fee of unconsolidated financial statements
Half year review of unconsolidated financial statements
Annual audit fee of consolidated financial statements
Certifications for free float, CDC, unclaimed dividend,
Code of Corporate Governance and Shariah Audit

Out of pocket expenses
Sales tax

28. OTHER EXPENSES

Sindh Workers’ Profit Participation Fund

Workers’ Welfare Fund

Central Research Fund

Exchange loss - net

Mark-up on Sindh Workers’ Profit Participation Fund
Operating fixed assets written off
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2024

1,600
600
500

900
3,600
396
320

4,316

33,477
12,721
6,785

52,983

2023

1,586
474
517

833
3,410
374
302

4,086

30,230
11,487
6,046
3,011
66
1,697

52,537
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2024 2023
Note ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
29. OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets
Profit on saving accounts - Islamic 14,272 9,410
Income from non-financial assets
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 4.2 50,325 43,513
Gain on termination of lease - 6,867
Scrap sales 2,144 6,147
Exchange gain - net 716 -
Dividend income on mutual fund units - 7,643
Others 2,349 5,877
55,534 70,047
69,806 79,457
30. FINANCE COST
Profit on:
- Diminishing musharakah 67,714 43,410
- Musharakah running finance 2,558 5,472
Markup on lease liabilities 5.1.1 13,574 11,295
Markup on GIDC 12,578 -
Mark-up on Sindh Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 3,015 -
99,439 60,177
Bank charges and commission 1,134 1,194
100,573 61,371
31. TAXATION
Current 221,933 178,649
Prior (35,287) (14,217)
Deferred (1,710) (465)
184,936 163,967

31.1 Income tax assessments of the Company have been finalised up to and including the tax year 2023 under the
self assessment scheme.
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2024 2023 2024 2023
(Effective tax - (Rupees in '000) ----------
. . . rate%)
31.2 Relationship between income tax
expense and accounting profit
Profit before income tax 612,099 556,835
Tax at the enacted tax rate 29.00 29.00 177,509 161,482
Effect of super tax 9.53 10.00 58,338 55,684
Tax effects of:
Income subject to FTR (2.24) (1.41) (13,725) (7,830)
Carried forward turnover tax adjustment (0.65) (6.34) (4,000) (35,300)
Prior period adjustment (5.76) (2.55) (35,287) (14,217)
Others 0.34 0.74 2,101 4,148
Income tax- note 31 30.22 29.44 184,936 163,967
2024 2023
32.  BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE Note - (Rupees in '000) ----------
Profit after taxation 427,163 392,868
------- Number of shares -------
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 45,811,018 45,811,018

Basic earnings per share (Rupees) 32.1 9.32 8.58

32.1 There is no dilutive effect on basic earnings per share of the Company as at June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023.

2024 2023
33.  CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS Note - (Rupees in '000) -------—
Profit before income tax 612,099 556,835
Adjustments of non cash and other items:-
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 4.4 215,181 173,858
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 4.6.1 38,264 30,030
Amortisation 6.1 1,020 1,688
Finance cost 30 86,999 50,076
Mark-up on lease liabilities 30 13,574 11,295
Provision for gratuity 19.1.6 36,244 28,649
Operating fixed assets written off - 1,697
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 4.2 (50,325) (43,513)
Gain on termination of lease - (6,867)
Dividend income on mutual fund units - (7,643)
Provision for slow moving and obsolete stock-in-trade 11.4 49,593 110,545
Allowance for expected credit loss 12.2 &14.1 13,923 26,659
Change in working capital 33.1 (254,963) (579,423)
761,609 353,886
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2024 2023

33.1 Change in working capital

34.

34.1

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Stores and spares 698 (2,013)
Stock-in-trade (245,392) (626,263)
Trade debts (12,880) (108,157)
Loans and advances (89,703) (23,993)
Trade deposits, prepayments and other receivables (17,820) 20,242
Sales tax refundable 29,086 140,787

(336,011) (599,397)

Increase in current liabilities

Trade and other payables 81,048 19,974

(254,963) (579,423)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are credit risk, operational risk, liquidity risk
and market risk (including return rate risk, currency risk and price risk). The Board of Directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to
discharge its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. Concentrations of credit risk arise
when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar economic features
that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic,
political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s
performance to developments affecting a particular industry. The Company's management is regularly conducting
detailed analysis on sectors.

34.1.1 Exposure to credit risk

The Company seeks to minimize the credit risk exposure through having exposures only to customers considered
credit worthy. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is:

2024 2023
Note  ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------

Long-term deposits 9 73,183 58,165
Trade debts 12 389,899 382,862
Loans 8 5,728 5,609
Trade deposits and other receivables 14 91,115 77,680
Cash and bank balances 17 184,251 54,382

744,176 578,698
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The Company does not take into consideration the value of collateral while testing financial assets for impairment.
The Company considers the credit worthiness of counterparties as part of its risk management.

Long-term deposits

This represents long term deposits under diminishing musharakah and with utility companies. The Company
does not foresee any credit exposure there against as the amounts are paid to counterparty as per agreement
and is refundable on termination of the agreement with respective counterparty.

Trade debts

The Company's exposure to credit risk arising from trade debtors is mainly influenced by the individual
characteristics of each customer. Majority of the Company's sales are made against receipts in advance from
customers. The Company has no major concentration of credit risk with any single customer. The majority of
the trade customers have been transacting with the Company for several years. The Company establishes an

allowance for impairment where it considers recoveries are not probable.

The information about the credit risk exposure on the Company's trade receivables as at June 30, 2023 and
June 30, 2024 is disclosed in Note 12.3 of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Loans

This represent loan given to executive and other employees as per the policy of the company. The management
does not expect to incur credit loss against these loans.

Trade deposits and other receivables

These represent deposits placed with various suppliers as per the terms of securing availability of services.
The management does not expect to incur credit loss there against.

Cash and bank balances

Cash is held only with reputable banks with high quality external credit rating assessed by external rating
agencies. Following are the credit ratings of banks with which balances are held or credit lines available:

Rating Rating

Banks agency Short term Long term
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited VIS A-1 A+
Askari Bank Limited PACRA A-1+ AA+
Bank Al Habib Limited PACRA A-1+ AAA
Bank Al Falah Islamic PACRA A-1+ AAA
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited VIS A-1+ AA
Habib Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA
Mcb Bank Limited PACRA A-1+ AAA
Mcb Islamic Bank Limited PACRA A-1 A+
Meezan Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA
Allied Bank Limited PACRA A-1+ AAA
Bankislami Pakistan Limited PACRA A-1 AA-
Bank of Punjab PACRA A-1+ AA+
Habib Metro Bank Pakistan PACRA A-1+ AA+
First Habib Modaraba PACRA A-1+ AA+
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34.1.2 Concentration of credit risk

34.2

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities
in the same geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations
indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry.
In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, management focuses on the maintenance of a diversified
portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly. Management does
not consider that it has any concentration of credit risk at the reporting date.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company applies the prudent risk management policies by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and
by keeping committed credit lines. The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial
liabilities at the following reporting dates:

2024
Carrying Contractual upto one onetofive More than
amount cashflows year years five years

(Rupees in '000)

Long-term financing 421,134 (525,471) (171,224) (354,247) -
Lease liabilities 113,416 (152,319) (46,366) (105,953) -
Trade and other payables 580,346 (580,346) (580,346) - -
Unclaimed dividend 550 (550) (550) - -

1,115,446  (1,258,686)  (798,486)  (460,200) -

2023
Carrying Contractual upto one oneto five More than
amount cashflows year years five years

(Rupees in '000)

Long-term financing 352,321 (463,090) (136,129) (326,961) -
Lease liabilities 143,366 (202,143) (44,350) (157,793) -
Trade and other payables 637,044 (637,044) (637,044) - -
Unclaimed dividend 1,457 (1,457) 1,457 - -

1,134,188  (1,303,734)  (816,066)  (484,754) -

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of mark-
up rate effective as at June 30. The rate of mark-up has been disclosed in respective notes to these financial
statements.
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July 01, Cash Non June 30,
2023 Flows cash flow 2024

(Rupees in '000)

34.2.1 Changes in liabilities from

34.3

34.4

financing activities

Long-term financing 352,321 1,099 67,714 421,134
Lease liabilities 143,366 (43,524) 13,574 113,416
Unclaimed dividend 1,457 (907) - 550

497,144 (43,332) 81,288 535,100
Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market prices comprise three types of risks which includes interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk,
such as equity risk. There has been no change in the Company's exposure to market risk or the manner in
which this risk is managed and measured.

Return rate risk

Return rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in the market return rates. The Company’s return rate risk arises from long-term financing
and bank deposits obtained with floating rates. All the borrowings of the Company are obtained and investments

made in the functional currency.

At the reporting date, the return rate profile of Company’s return-bearing financial instruments was:

2024 2023
Note  ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
Financial asset
Local currency - saving accounts 17 176,469 44,542
Financial liabilities
Long-term financing 20 421,134 352,321

The Company analyses its return rate exposure on a regular basis by monitoring existing facilities against
prevailing market return rates and taking into account various other financing options available.

The following figures demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in return rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Company’s profit before tax:
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2024
Change in return rate

Change in return rate

2023
Change in return rate

Change in return rate

Currency Risk

Increase / .
. Effect on profit
(gec_reasg) n before tax
asis points

(Rupees in '000)

+100 (2,447)

-100 2,447

+100 (3,078)

-100 3,078

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because

of changes in foreign exchange rates.

Exposure to currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk on trade debts, bank balances and trade creditors that are denominated
in a currency other than the respective functional currency of the Company, primarily U.S. Dollar. The Company’s

exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

2024 2023
Rupees us Chinese Rupees us Chinese
Dollars Yuan Dollars Yuan
(Amounts in '000)
Financial assets
Bank Balance 26,101 94 - - - -
Financial liabilities
Trade creditors (37,951) (110) (188) - - -
Net exposure (11,850) (16) (188) - - -
The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:
2024 2023 2024 2023
Average rates Reporting date rates
(Rupees in '000)
US Dollar to PKR 282.90 250.57 278.34 285.99
35.96

Chinese Yuan to PKR 39.16
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Sensitivity analysis

A 10 percent strengthening / (weakening) of the Pak Rupee against the US Dollar and Chinese Yuan at June
30, 2024 would have decreased the profit by Rs. 1.13 million. This analysis assumes that all other variables,
in particular return rates, remains constant and the analysis is performed on the same basis as done in prior
year.

34.6 Equity price risk

The Company is not exposed to any equity price risk.

2024 2023
Note ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
34.7 Categories of financial instruments
34.7.1 Financial assets as per statement of financial position
At amortised cost
Trade debts 12 389,899 382,862
Cash and bank balances 17 184,251 54,382
Trade deposits and other receivables 14 91,115 77,680
Long-term deposits 9 73,183 58,165
Loans 8 5,728 5,609
744,176 578,698
34.7.2 Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position
At amortised cost
Long-term financing 20 421,134 352,321
Lease liabilities 5 113,416 143,366
Trade and other payables 22 580,346 637,044
Unclaimed dividend 550 1,457
1,115,446 1,134,188

34.7.3 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in these unconsolidated financial statements
approximate fair values.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

The following table shows assets recognised at fair value, analyzed between those whose fair value is based
on:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maintain healthy capital ratios, strong credit
rating and optimal capital structures in order to ensure ample availability of finance for its existing and potential
investment projects, to maximize shareholders value and reduce the cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.
Net debt is calculated as total loans and borrowings including any finance charges thereon, less cash and cash

equivalents.

The gearing ratios as at June 30, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

2024 2023

Note ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
Long term financing 20 421,134 352,321
Accrued profit 22 2,471 6,117
Total debt 423,605 358,438
Cash and bank balances 17 (184,251) (54,382)
Net debt 239,354 304,056
Share capital 18 458,111 458,111
Reserves 2,738,998 2,412,582
Total capital 3,197,109 2,870,693
Capital and net debt 3,436,463 3,174,749
Gearing ratio 6.97% 9.58%

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of its working capital with
a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.
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CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

The capacity and production of the Company’s machines are indeterminable as these are multi-product and
involve varying processes of manufacture.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties of the Company comprise associates, companies with common directorship, directors, key
management personnel, staff provident fund and a subsidiary. Details of transactions with related parties
during the year, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these unconsolidated financial
statements are as follows:

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Company. The Company considers its Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Company Secretary, Non-Executive Directors and departmental heads to be its key management
personnel. There are no transactions with key management personnel other than their terms of employment
/ entitlement.

2024 2023
---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
Descriptions Nature of transactions
Key Management Personnel Dividend 46,423 62,324
Short term benefits 63,368 50,210
Retirement benefits 3,064 2,460
Non-Executive Directors Fee for attending meetings 1,525 3,100
Provident fund Contribution paid 60,557 54,040
Misbah Cosmetics
Private Limited Purchases 3,388 -
Payments 3,360 -
Payable 28 -

There are no other related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or has arrangement
/ agreement in place.

The Company carries out transactions with related parties at commercial terms and conditions as per the
Company's policy.
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37. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
. . Executive :
Chief Executive Directors Executive Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
(Rupees in '000)
Managerial remuneration 27,330 23,018 27,330 23,018 411,657 321,354 466,317 367,390
Bonus 1,658 - 1,658 - 14,706 - 18,022 -
Perquisites 99 247 573 99 1,317 625 1,989 971
Retirement benefits 1,532 1,230 1,532 1,230 31,755 22,100 34,819 24,560
Other benefits 2,344 1,909 2,376 1,919 46,593 30,728 51,313 34,556
32,963 26,404 33,469 26,266 506,028 374,807 572,460 427,477
Number of persons 1 1 1 1 72 65 74 67
37.1 The Chief Executive, Directors and Executives are also provided with free use of Company maintained cars as
per the terms of their employment.
37.2 The non-executive directors are not entitled to any remuneration except meeting fee as disclosed in note 36.1.
37.3 As per the Act, an executive means an employee, other than the chief executive and director, whose salary
exceeds twelve hundred thousand rupees in a financial year.
38. NUMBER OF PERSONS EMPLOYED
Number of persons employed as at year end were 1,141 (2023: 1,232), the average number of persons employed
during the year were 1,175 (2023: 1,355) and number of person employed in factory as at year end were 464
(2023: 411).
39. CORRESPONDING FIGURES
39.1 Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for the purpose of comparison
or better presentation, the effect of which is immaterial and is summarised below:
Particulars Reclassified Reclassified Amount
from to Rupees in '000
Charge on loss allowance on Selling and Statement of 35,873
trade debts and trade deposits distribution profit or loss
expenses
Provision For Gas Infrastructure Long term Current portion of 71,122
Development Cess (GIDC) provision long term provision
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40. GENERAL

40.1 Non-adjusting event after the reporting date
Subsequent to year ended June 30, 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on
September 27, 2024 has proposed final cash dividend @ Rs. 1.00/- per share amounting to Rs. 45.811 million

(2023: Rs. 0.54/- per share amounting to Rs. 24.738 million) for approval of the members at the Annual General
Meeting to be held on October 26, 2024.

40.2 Date of authorisation for issue

These financial statements were authorized for issue on September 27, 2024 by the Board of Directors of the

Company.
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE _ DIRECTOR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Macter International Limited

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Macter International Limited and its
subsidiary (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at

June 30, 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at June 30, 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

A. F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network
State Life Building No. 1-C, I.I. Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-74000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (21) 32426682-6/32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/32427938/32424740; <www.pwc.com/pk>

KARACHI = LAHORE = ISLAMABAD
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S. No.

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

(@

Revenue from contracts with customer

(Refer note 3.18 & 25 to the consolidated financial
statements)

The Group's revenue is generated from sales of
pharmaceutical and cosmetic products. The Group
recognised revenue of Rs. 7.91 billion from the
sale of goods to domestic as well as export
customers during the year ended June 30, 2024.

As part of our overall response to the audit risks
when identifying and assessing the risks in revenue
recognition, we considered that there is an inherent
risk that revenue may be overstated as it is a key
performance measure, which could create an
incentive or pressure on the Group's management
to meet targets. Further, we have focused our audit
activities over the revenue recognised near to year
end as there was a high risk that the revenue may
be recorded before the control of goods is
transferred to the customer and in an incorrect
accounting period. Moreover, for pharmaceutical
goods, revenue recognition includes determination
of sales prices in accordance with the regulated
price regime of the Government.

Based on the above and considering that the revenue
recognition is a significant and high-risk area, we
considered this as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:

obtained an understanding of the Group's process
with respect to revenue recognition and tested
design and operating effectiveness of controls
relevant to such process;

for pharmaceutical goods, obtained an
understanding of pricing mechanism of Drug
Regulatory Authority of Pakistan (DRAP) and
tested, on sample basis, selling prices of regulated
pharmaceutical products to ensure compliance
with the pricing policies of DRAP;

inspected contracts to obtain an understanding of
contract terms particularly relating to timing of
transfer of control of goods and assessing the
Group's accounting policies for recognition of
revenue with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

performed substantive audit procedures over
revenue transactions along with review of related
supporting documents, on test basis;

performed cut-off procedures to ensure that the
revenue is recognised in the correct accounting
period; and

ensured that presentation and disclosures related
to revenue are being addressed appropriately.

Information Other than the Unconsolidated and Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's
Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated and unconsolidated financial statements
and our auditor's reports thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act,
2017 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

These consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023,
were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on September
26,2023.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Azhar Hussain.
AHefson Le-

A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Date : October 04, 2024
UDIN: AR2024102900gN;jZ8AEh
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

ASSETS
Note

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 4
Intangible assets 6
Long-term loans 7
Long-term deposits 8
Deferred taxation - net 9
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares
Stock-in-trade 10
Trade debts 11
Loans and advances 12
Trade deposits, prepayments and other receivables 13
Sales tax refundable 14
Taxation - net 15
Cash and bank balances 16
TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 17
Capital reserve
Revenue reserve - accumulated profit
Equity attributable to the owner's of the Holding Company
Non controlling interest
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred liabilities 18
Long-term financing 19
Lease liabilities 5
Long term provision 20
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 21
Short-term borrowings 22
Current portion of long-term financing 19
Current portion of lease liabilities 5
Current portion of long term provision 20
Unclaimed dividend
TOTAL LIABILITIES
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 23

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

2024

2,090,217
46,048
1,829
75,240

14,052

2,227,386

18,114
2,022,439
472,307
278,126
91,205
9,626
60,433
187,673
3,139,923
5,367,309

458,111
1,225,860
1,270,529
2,954,500

3,583

2,958,083

262,834
361,087
85,862

709,783

1,377,418
105,000
103,437
27,554
85,484
550
1,699,443

" 2,409,226

5,367,309

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

il Pl

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

100

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

2023

2,070,014
48,537
1,930
60,402
357
2,181,240

18,812
1,861,822
416,489
145,570
81,465
38,712
21,568

54,974
2,639,412
4,820,652

458,111
1,225,860
965,136
2,649,107

8,209

2,657,316

224,785
319,890
122,712

1,784
669,171

1,289,817
34,166
76,949
20,654
71,122

1,457

1,494,165

2,163,336

4,820,652

_ DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Revenue from contracts with customers

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling and Distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Charge on loss allowance on trade debts and trade deposits
Other expenses

Other income

Operating profit

Finance cost

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit after taxation

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

Attributable to:
Owners of the Holding Company
Non-controlling interest

Note

25

26

27

28

11.2&13.1

29

30

31

32

33

2024 2023

7,974,520 6,926,117
(4,554,527) (4,015,217)
3,419,993 2,910,900
(2,193,146) (1,942,043)
(508,432) (379,907)
(19,761) (35,873)
(52,983) (52,537)
73,000 79,469
(2,701,322) (2,330,891)
"~ 718671 580,009
(125,995) (72,450)
592,676 507,559
(190,470) (158,772)
402206 348,787
---------- (Rupees) ----------
8.88 7.80
---------- (Rupees) ----------
406,692 357,128
(4,486) (8,341)
402,206 348,787

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023

Profit after taxation 402,206 348,787
Other comprehensive loss:
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Actuarial loss on remeasurement of
defined benefit plans — net of deferred tax (19,437) (4,076)

Total comprehensive income for the year 382,769 344,711

Attributable to:

Owners of the Holding Company 387,395 350,520
Non-controlling interest (4,626) (5,809)

382,769 344,711

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Balance as at July 01, 2022

Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive loss for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transactions with owners

Final cash dividend @ Rs. 1.50 per share
for the year ended June 30, 2022

Interim cash dividend @ Rs.0.54 per
share for the half year ended
December 31, 2022

Balance as at June 30, 2023

Balance as at July 01, 2023

Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive loss for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transactions with owners

Final cash dividend @ Rs. 0.54 per
share for the year ended

June 30, 2023

Interim cash dividend @ Rs. 1.25 per
share for the year ended

June 30, 2024

Balance as at June 30, 2024

2024

Issued, Reserves
subscribed [ capital Non
and paid-up resgrves Revenue reserves Total |Controlling | Total
share Share Accumulated | reserves | Interest
capital Premium profit
(Rupees in '000)
458,111 1,225,860 705,539 1,931,399 16,550 2,406,060
- - 357,128 357,128 (8,341) 348,787
- - (4,076) (4,076) - (4,076)
- - 353,052 353,052 (8,341) 344,711
- - (68,717) (68,717) - (68,717)
- - (24,738) (24,738) - (24,738)
458,111 1,225,860 965,136 2,190,996 8,209 2,657,316
458,111 1,225,860 965,136 2,190,996 8,209 2,657,316
- - 406,692 406,692 (4,486) 402,206
- - (19,297) (19,297) (140) (19,437)
- - 387,395 387,395 (4,626) 382,769
. . (24,738) (24,738) = (24,738)
- - (57,264) (57,264) = (57,264)
458,111 1,225,860 1,270,529 2,496,389 3,583 2,958,083
The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
CHIEF EXECUTIVE ) DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations

Financial charges paid

Income tax paid

Gratuity paid

Receipts from long term loan
Long-term deposits paid

Advance received against motor vehicle

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets
Addition to intangible asset
Short-term investment made
Proceeds from disposal of short-term investment
Dividend income on mutual fund units

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid
Short-term borrowings obtained
Short-term borrowings repaid
Long-term financing obtained
Long term financing repaid
Principal portion of lease liabilities paid
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2023

---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------

723,269

(112,741)
(231,045)
(33,808)
101
(14,838)
245
(392,086)
331,183

(304,430)
80,931
(1,553)

(225,052)

(82,002)
169,998
(99,164)
162,071
(94,385)
(29,950)

26,568

132,699

54,974

187,673

340,112

(60,428)
(154,796)
(27,018)
52
(34,001)

676

(275,515)

64,597

(437,249)
62,967
(1,978)

(40,000)
199,707
7,643

(208,910)

(93,393)
75,737
(44,822)
219,501
(147,487)

(25,555)
(16,019)

(160,332)
215,306

54,974

—_—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

The Group consist of Macter International Limited (“the Holding Company”) and Misbah Cosmetics (Private)
Limited (“the Subsidiary Company”). Brief profile of the Holding Company and the Subsidiary Company is given

below:

11

111

1.1.2

1.1.3

Macter International Limited

Macter International Limited (the Holding Company) was incorporated in Pakistan in 1992 as a private
limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and was
converted into a public limited company in 2011. Effective from August 01, 2017 the Company has been
listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

The geographical locations and addresses of the Company’s business units, including plants are as under:

- The Company’s manufacturing plants are located at F-216, S.|.T.E., Karachi and E-40/A, S.|.T.E., Karachi,

- The Company’s commercial office is located at Bungalow No # 44-H, PECHS Block 6, Karachi and House
No # NA-300, New Town, Nawaz Sharif Park, Rawalpindi, and

- The warehouse of the Company is situated at Plot No # F-217 & 217-A S.I.T.E., Karachi.

The principal activity of the Company is to manufacture and market pharmaceutical products. The
registered office of the company is situated at F-216 S.I.T.E., Karachi.

1.2  Misbah Cosmetics (Private) Limited

1.2.1 The Subsidiary Company is a Private Limited Company incorporated in Pakistan on June 09, 2014 under
the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The geographical location and registered office of the Company is
situated at F-216, S.I.T.E., Karachi.

1.2.2 The principal activity of the Subsidiary Company is selling and distribution of cosmetic products in Pakistan.
1.3  These financial statements denote the consolidated financial statements of the Group. Unconsolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary have been presented separately.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1  Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in
Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act);

105




Annual Report

2024 Macter International Limited

2.2

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Act; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the IFAS and Act differ from IFRS, the provisions of and
directives issued under the IFAS and Act have been followed.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiary is a entity over which the Group has control. Control is achieved when the group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee. Generally, there is presumption that a majority of voting
rights result in control.

The Group re-assess whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more elements of control.

Subsidiary is consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date when such control ceases. Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed off during the year are included in profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until the
date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

The financial statements of the Subsidiary Company are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Holding Company, using consistent accounting policies. The accounting policies of the Subsidiary Company
have been changed to conform with accounting policies of the Holding Company, where required.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any non-
controlling interest. The excess of cost of acquisition is recorded as goodwill, however, if the cost of
acquisition is less than fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in the profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. For the
purposes of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, on the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination.
Goodwill is tested annually or whenever there is an indication of impairment exists. Impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss and is not reversed in future
periods.

The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the Subsidiary Company are consolidated on a line by line
basis and carrying value of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the Subsidiary

Company’s shareholders’ equity in the consolidated financial statements.

All intra-group balances, transactions and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
and dividends within the Group are eliminated in full.
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Non-controlling interest (NCI) is that part of the net results of operations and of net assets of subsidiary
attributable interest which are not owned by the Group. The Group measures NCI on proportionate basis
of the net assets of Subsidiary Company.

When the ownership of a subsidiary is less than hundred percent, a NCI exists. The NCl is allocated its
share of the total comprehensive income for the year, even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, carrying amount of any NCI, cumulative translation differences recognised
in other comprehensive income, and recognises fair value of consideration received, any investment
retained, surplus or deficit in profit and loss, and reclassifies the Holding Company share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income to profit and loss account or retained earnings,
as appropriate.

Non-controlling interest in the Subsidiary Company has been calculated as follows:

2024 2023

Non-current assets 25,824 20,882
Current assets 185,203 130,460
Non-current liabilities (45,954) (43,986)
Current liabilities (147,298) (66,638)
Net assets 17,775 40,718
Share of NCI @ 20.16% (2023: 20.16%) 3,583 8,209

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Group’s functional
and presentation currency and figures are rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees, unless otherwise
disclosed.

Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements
a) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective

There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which
are mandatory for the Group’s annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2023. However, these
do not have any significant impact on the Group’s financial reporting.

b) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

There are certain new standards and amendments that will be applicable to the Group for its annual
periods beginning on or after July 1, 2024. The new standards include IFRS 18 Presentation and
Disclosure in Financial Statements (published in April 2024) and IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures (published in May 2024) both with applicability date of January 1, 2027
as per IASB. The Group’s management at present is in the process of assessing the full impacts of
these new standards and is expecting to complete the assessment in due course. The amendments,
however, are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial reporting and, therefore,
have not been disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.
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Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting
standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires the management to make judgement, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and accompanying disclosures.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgements
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and
judgements which are significant to the consolidated financial statements:

Notes
- Property, plant and equipment 3.1&3.13
- Stock in trade 3.5
- Impairment of financial and non-financial assets 3.13
- Taxation 3.25
- Employee retirement benefits 3.14
- Lease Liability 3.2
- Contingencies 3.19
- Assets and liabilities arising from rights of return 3.21

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The summary of material accounting policies and methods of computations adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are as follows.

3.1

Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any, except for leasehold
land which are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance method at the
rates specified in note 4.1 to the consolidated financial statements. Depreciation on additions is charged
from the month asset is available for use and in case of disposal upto the preceding month of disposal.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals

and improvements are capitalized when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.
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Gains or losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment, if any, are recognized in consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The assets residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate,
at each financial year end.

Capital work-in-progress

These are stated at cost less impairment, if any, and represent expenditures incurred and advances made
in respect of specific assets during the construction / installation year. These are transferred to relevant
operating fixed assets as and when assets are available for use.

Lease liability and Right-of-use assets

The Group, as a lessee, has recognised right-of-use assets representing its right to use the underlying
assets and lease liabilities representing its obligations to make lease payments.

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
The Group mainly leases properties for its operations. The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and
subsequently at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for
certain remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line
method over the shorter of the lease term and the asset’s useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets
are determined on the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically
reduced by impairment losses, if any.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the entity’s incremental borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have
to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment
with similar terms and conditions. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the
lease liability and decreased by lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension
option is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be
exercised. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit and loss if the carrying amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

- Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

- Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

- Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

- The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

- Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option.
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3.4

3.5

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

- The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

- Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;
- Any initial direct costs; and

- Dismantling costs and restoration costs.

The Group has not elected to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of
properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises
the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Intangible

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any. These are amortised
on a straight line method when assets are available for use at the rates specified in note 6.1 to the
consolidated financial statement. Amortisation is charged from the month when asset is available for use

while no amortisation is charged in the month in which an asset is disposed off.

The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The effect of any adjustment
to useful lives is recognised prospectively as a change of accounting estimate.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an intangible asset represented by the difference between
the sale proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period
of disposal.

Stores and spares

These are valued at lower of moving average cost and estimated net realizable value (NRV), less provision
for obsolete items (if any), except items in-transit, if any, are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus
other charges incurred thereon up to the date of consolidated statement of financial position.
Provision, if required is made in the financial statements for slow moving, obsolete and unusable items.
Stores and spares are assessed and provision is applied according to degree of ageing based on a specific
criteria.

Stock-in-trade

These are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined as follows:

- Raw and packing material - on moving average basis.

- Finished goods and work-in-process - at weighted average cost of purchases and
applicable manufacturing expenses.

- Stock-in-transit - Valued at cost comprising invoice value plus
other charges paid thereon up to the reporting date.
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Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Provision is recorded for slow moving
and expired stock where necessary.

Trade debts

These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured
at fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of
expected credit loss.

Loans, advances, deposits, and other receivables

These are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.

Exchange gains or losses arising in respect of deposits, advances and other receivables denominated in
foreign currency are adjusted to their respective carrying amounts and charged to consolidated statement
of profit or loss, if any.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost / amortised cost. For
the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of bank balances in
current, savings and deposit accounts, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of upto three months, short-term borrowings under running finance and book overdraft which are payable
on demand, if any. The cash and cash equivalents are readily convertible to known amount of cash and
are therefore subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Share premium

It represents the difference between the par value of the Group’s ordinary shares and the total amount
of money the Group receives for ordinary shares issued.

Financial instruments

3.12.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

The Group classifies its financial assets into following three categories:
- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

- at amortised cost.
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3.12.2

3.12.3

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition.

Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income

at FVOCI calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income. On
de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Equity instruments These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised

at FVOCI as income in the statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
FVTPL including any interest / markup or dividend income, are recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
measured at interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any.
amortised cost Interest / markup income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment, if

any, are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Financial assets

All financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Group becomes party to the
respective contractual provisions. Financial assets comprise loans and receivables that are financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets and include trade debts, deposits,
advances and cash and cash equivalents. The Group derecognises the financial assets when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows
in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are
transferred or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and
does not retain control over the transferred asset.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Group becomes party to
the respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings, unclaimed
/ unpaid dividend, accrued mark-up, lease liability and trade and other payables. The Group derecognises
the financial liabilities when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liabilities
other than at fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable
transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using
effective interest rate method.
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Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial
statements only when the Group has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts
and the Group intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the
Group or the counter parties.

Impairment
Financial Assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) in respect of financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following,
which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balance for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade debts are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 - 48 months
before June 30, 2024 or July 1, 2023 respectively and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced
within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the debts. The Group has
identified the Gross Domestic Product (GDP) and the inflation rate of the countries in which it sells its
goods to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected
changes in these factors.

The Group considers a financial asset to be at a risk of default when contractual payments are 90 days
past due except for receivables from institutions for which it is considered as 1440 days, unless there
are factors that might indicate otherwise. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than
past due for a reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that
result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter
period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit
risk.
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3.14

3.15

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable
expectations of recovery of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Group individually
makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a
reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group expects no significant recovery from the amount written
off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order
to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

The adoption of the expected loss approach has not resulted in any material change in impairment
provision for any financial asset.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than stores and spares and stock in
trade are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
If such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount, being higher of value in use and fair value less
costs to sell, is estimated. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that
cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
groups of assets. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Employee retirement benefits

Defined benefit plan

The Group operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all eligible permanent employees. Provision
is made on the basis of actuarial recommendations. The latest actuarial valuation is carried out as at
June 30, 2024 using the Project Unit Credit Method.

An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments
in the future. These includes the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality
rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.

Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a provident fund plan for all permanent management employees. Contribution is
made to the fund equally by the Group and the employees at the rate of 8.33% of basic and / or gross
salary, as per the respective entitlement grades.

Trade and Other Payable

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost.
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Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation of the Group to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

Unclaimed dividend

Dividend declared and payable from the consolidated statement of financial position date are recognised
as unclaimed dividend.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingencies

Contingencies are disclosed when the Group has a possible obligation that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the entity or a present obligation that arises from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue from sale of goods at a point in time when control of product is transferred
to customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods. Control, depending on contractual terms, is considered to be transferred
either when the product is directly uplifted by customer from factory premises or when it is delivered
by the Group at customer premises.

The Group generally enters into an agreement with its customers for supply of its products, including
delivery of product. As the transportation of product coincides with actual delivery, sale of product and
transportation is considered single performance obligation. The credit limits in contract with customers
varies depending on the terms of specific contract.

Income from toll manufacturing is recognised at a point in time when services are rendered.

Assets and liabilities arising from rights of return

Right of return assets

Right of return asset represents the Group’s right to recover the goods expected to be returned by
customers. The asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected
costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in the value of the returned goods. The
Group updates the measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions to its expected level of returns,

as well as any additional decreases in the value of the returned products. Returns for the Group comprise
of expired products or near expiry products.
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3.23

3.24

3.25

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable)
from the customer and is measured at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to return
to the customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change
in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.

Other income

Other income is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the income can be measured reliably. Other income is measured on the following basis:

- Return on short-term deposits and investments at amortised cost are accounted for using the
effective interest rate method.

- Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.
- Scrap sales are recognized on accrual basis.
Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the foreign exchange rate ruling
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
statement of financial position date are translated into Pak Rupees at the foreign exchange rate prevailing
at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translations at the year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

ljarah lease rentals
Leases under Shariah compliant ljarah contracts, where significant portion of the risk and reward of
ownership is retained by the lesser, are classified as ljarah. Rentals under these arrangements are

charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss on straight line basis over the lease term.

ljarah rentals directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset are capitalized as part
of the cost of the respective assets.

Taxation

Current

The current income tax charge is based on the taxable income for the year calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the
statement of profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with

respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.
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Deferred

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, while deferred tax assets
are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credit and unused tax losses can be
utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the assets are realized or the liabilities are settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or subsequently enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to
statement of profit or loss except to the extent it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive
income.

Levies

Tax charged under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which is not based on taxable income or any amount
paid / payable in excess of the calculation based on taxable income or any minimum tax which is not
adjustable against future income tax liability is classified as levy in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as these levies fall under the scope of IFRIC 21 / IAS 37.

Tax on dividend from subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are not considered as levy as these
dividends are specifically covered by IAS 12.

During the year, The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) has issued guidelines via
Circular No. 07/2024 dated May 15, 2024 which requires the Group to classify ‘Levies’ (IFRIC 21) seperately
from ‘Income tax’ (IAS 12) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Since, the amount of levy is
not material to these consolidated financial statements, Levies are not classified separately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend distribution to the Holding Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period
in which the dividends are approved. However, if these are approved after the reporting period but
before the financial statements are authorised for issue, disclosure is made in the consolidated financial
statements.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earning per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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3.28 Segment reporting

Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Group. An operating segment
is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenue and
incur expenses. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM) to make decision about resources allocated to the segment and assess its
performance and for which discrete financial information is available.Segment results that are reported
to the Chief Executive include items directly attributable to a segment.

2024 2023
Note ~  -------—- (Rupees in '000) ----------
4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets 4.1 1,762,762 1,836,114
Capital work-in-progress 4.5 231,320 99,501
Right-of-use assets 4.6 96,135 134,399
2,090,217 2,070,014
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4.4 Depreciation charge for the year on operating fixed assets has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales
Selling and Distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

4.5 Capital work-in-progress

Balance at the beginning of the year
Capital expenditure incurred / advances made
Advances refunded / reclassified
Transfer to operating fixed assets
including advances adjusted
Balance at the end of the year

Balance at the beginning of the year
Capital expenditure incurred / advances made
Transfer to operating fixed assets
including advances adjusted
Balance at the end of the year

4.6 Right-of-use assets

As at July 01,

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Year ended June 30,

Opening net book value

Additions during the year
Reassessment of lease during the year

Termination of lease during the year
- Cost
- Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation for the year
Closing net book value

As at June 30,

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

2024 2023
Note  ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
26 116,742 99,089
27 80,273 55,721
28 20,827 20,968
217,842 175,778
2024
Building on Plant and
Leasehold land machinery Total
---------------------- (Rupees in '000)
38,593 807 99,501
19,396 145,579 157,953 322,928
(3,691) - (25,820) (29,511)
(45,071) (4,674)  (111,853) (161,598)
9,227 141,712 231,320
2023
Building on Plant and
Leasehold land machinery Total
---------------------- (Rupees in '000) ------------=-=mmmmomn
15,068 7,544 179,563 202,175
46,857 16,539 337,812 401,208
(23,332) (23,276) (457,274) (503,882)
38,593 807 99,501
2024 2023
Note  ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
211,040 136,091
(76,641) (80,287)
134,399 55,804
134,399 55,804
- 91,479
- 42,220
- (58,750)
- 33,676
- (25,074)
46.1 (38,264) (30,030)
96,135 134,399
211,040 211,040
(114,905) (76,641)
96,135 134,399
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2024 2023
Note ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
4.6.1Depreciation charge for the year on right-of-use
assets has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 25 7,444 5,992
Selling and Distribution expenses 26 30,820 24,038
38,264 30,030

4.6.2Right-of-use assets comprise of lease arrangements for premises utilised as office building and warehouse.

4.6.3The right-of-use assets are depreciated over a life of 3 - 5 years.

2024 2023
Note  ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
5. LEASES
5.1 LEASE LIABILITIES
Lease liabilities 113,416 143,366
Current portion of lease liabilities (27,554) (20,654)
85,862 122,712
5.1.1Reconciliation of the carrying amount is as follows:
Lease liabilities at the beginning of the year 143,366 67,163
Additions during the year - 91,479
Reassessment of lease during the year - 42,220
Termination of lease during the year - (31,941)
Accretion of interest 30 13,574 11,295
Lease rental payments made during the year (43,524) (36,850)
Lease liabilities at the end of the year 113,416 143,366
Current portion of lease liabilities (27,554) (20,654)
Non current portion of lease liabilities 85,862 122,712

5.1.2The amount of future payments under the lease arrangement and the period in which these payments will
become due are as follows:

2024 2023

Gross lease liabilities - minimum lease payments:

Not later than one year 46,366 44,350
Later than one year but not later than five years 105,953 157,793

152,319 202,143
Future finance charge (38,903) (58,777)
Present value of finance lease liabilities 113,416 143,366
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2024 2023
Note --------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill 6.3 4,632 4,632
Brand "MMM" 38,567 41,273
Other intangible assets 2,849 2,632
46,048 48,537
6.1
Cost Accumulated Amortisation
As at Additions As at Asat Charge Asat Net book Amortisation
2024 July 01, during the June 30, July01, forthe June30, valueasat rate % per
2023 year 2024 2023 year 2024 June 30,2024 annum
(Rupees in '000)
Goodwill - note 6.3 4,632 - 4,632 - - - 4,632
Brand "MMM" 54,127 - 54,127 12,854 2,706 15,560 38,567 5%
Software licenses 26,738 1,553 28,291 24,106 1,336 25,442 2,849 20-33.33%
SAP ERP 41,802 - 41,802 41,802 - 41,802 - 20%
Manufacturing and
distribution rights 20,000 - 20,000 20,000 - 20,000 - 20%
2024 147,299 1,553 148,852 98,762 4,042 102,804 46,048
Cost Accumulated Amortisation
As at Additions As at Asat  Charge AsatlJune  Netbook Amortization
2023 July 01, duringthe June 30, July 01, forthe 30,2023 valueasat rate % per
2022 year 2023 2022 year June 30, 2023 annum
(Rupees in '000)
Goodwill - note 6.3 4,632 - 4,632 - - - 4,632
Brand "MMM" 54,127 - 54,127 10,148 2,706 12,854 41,273 5%
Software licenses 24,760 1,978 26,738 22,259 1,847 24,106 2,632 20-33.33%
SAP ERP 41,802 - 41,802 41,802 - 41,802 - 20%
Manufacturing and
distribution rights 20,000 - 20,000 20,000 - 20,000 - 20%
2023 86,562 1,978 88,540 84,061 1,847 85,908 2,632
2024 2023
Note ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
6.2 Amortisation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 26 577 725
Selling and Distribution expenses 27 2,832 2,786
Administrative expenses 28 633 1,042
4,042 4,553
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Impairment testing of goodwill

The Group has performed its annual impairment test on the following cash generating unit as at June 30, 2024:

Misbah Cosmetics (Private) Limited (MCPL)

Goodwill acquired through business combinations have been allocated to the Subsidiary Company and monitored
at Group level.

The recoverable amount is determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections from
financial budgets approved by the senior management covering a five year period and applying the expected
value approach. The discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 24.97% for goodwill impairment testing.
The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the five year period is 5%. As a result of this analysis,
the management did not identify any impairment for the cash generating unit to which goodwill of Rs. 4.63
million is allocated.

2024 2023
Note ---—--—--- (Rupees in '000) ----------
LONG-TERM LOANS - secured, considered good
Due from:
- Executives 667 511
- Other employees 5,061 5,098
7.1 5,728 5,609
Less: Current portion
- Executives (133) (59)
- Other employees (3,766) (3,620)
12 (3,899) (3,679)
1,829 1,930

These represent mark-up free loans to executives and employees for purchase of motor cars, motor cycles,
house building, umrah and others, in accordance with the Group’s policy. These loans are secured against the
final settlement of respective employees and are recoverable in monthly installments over a period of one month
to one hundred and thirteen months, these loans are secured against retirement benefits of respective employees.

Long-term loans have been carried at cost as the effect of carrying these balances at amortised cost would not
be material in the overall context of these consolidated financial statements.

2024 2023

LONG-TERM DEPOSITS

ljarah lease rentals 597 1,143
Diminishing musharakah 57,277 42,843
Utilities 12,161 11,577
Rent 5,205 4,839

75,240 60,402
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9. DEFERRED TAXATION - NET
Accelerated Right of Provision Provision Provision Provision  Total
tax use of for for for for slow
depreciation assetand gratuity doubtful trade moving and
lease payable receivables deposits obsolete items
liability
(Rupees in '000)
Balance at July 01, 2023 (178,125) 3,156 74,000 48,563 8,994 43,769 357
Charge / (credit) to
profit or loss (12,745) 3,584 12,848 (4,618) 3,933 (1,292) 1,710
Charge to other comprehensive
income for the year - - 11,985 - - - 11,985

Balance at June 30, 2024 (190,870) 6,740 98,833 43,945 12,927 42,477 14,052

Balance at July 01, 2022 (138,320) 3,500 64,059 34,302 - 30,779 (5,680)

Charge / (credit) to

profit or loss (39,805) (344) 4,369 14,261 8,994 12,990 465

Charge to other comprehensive

income for the year - - 5,572 - - - 5,572

Balance at June 30, 2023 (178,125) 3,156 74,000 48,563 8,994 43,769 357

9.1 The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction, and the law
allows net settlement. Therefore, they have been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position.

9.2 Deferred tax asset / (liability) is recorded at 100% (2023: 92.02%) of the total deferred tax liability based on the
changes in Finance Act 2024, according to which export sales will not be treated as Final Tax Regime, instead
the export sales will now fall under Minimum Tax Regime.

9.3 Under the Finance Act, 2019, corporate rate of tax has been fixed at 29% for tax year 2020 and onwards. As per
Finance Act, 2022, companies operating in certain sectors, including pharmaceutical sector, are liable to pay
super tax at 10% for tax year 2022 and upto 4% for tax year 2023 and onwards. However Finance Act, 2023 has
introduced progressive rate on high earning persons ranging from 1% to 10% whereas on companies having
income in excess of Rs. 500 million 10% super tax will be applicable. Such higher rate of tax has been made
perpetual thus substantially increasing the overall tax costs for the businesses. Accordingly, deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been recognised using the expected applicable rate.

10. STOCK-IN-TRADE 2024 2023

Note  ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------

In hand
- raw materials 10.2 881,269 840,094
- packing materials 10.2 264,295 271,087
- work-in-process 214,700 158,131
- finished goods 10.1 633,564 688,258
1,993,828 1,957,570
Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete items 10.4 (108,916) (134,462)
1,884,912 1,823,108
In transit 10.5 137,527 38,714
2,022,439 1,861,822
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10.1 As at June 30, 2024, stock of finished products has been written down by Rs. 9.19 million (2023:
Rs. 3.50 million) to arrive at its net realisable value of Rs. 37.30 million (2023: Rs. 28.85 million).

10.2 These include raw material and packaging material held by third party amounting to Rs. 48.64 million (2023:
Rs. Nil) and Rs. 9.23 million (2023: Rs. Nil) respectively.

10.3 Finished goods includes right of return assets amounting to Rs. 38.29 million (2023: Rs. 44.28 million).

2024 2023
Note ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
10.4 Provision for slow moving and obsolete items

Balance at the beginning of the year 134,462 111,784
Charge for the year 26 50,076 110,545
Reversal for the year - (1,796)
Write off during the year (75,622) (86,071)
Balance at the end of the year 108,916 134,462

10.5 Stock in transit includes raw material of Rs. 102.78 million (2023: Rs. 3.61 million) and packing material of
Rs. 27.44 million (2023: Rs. 0.05 million).

2024 2023
11. TRADE DEBTS - unsecured Note = ---------- (Rupees in ‘000) ----------
Considered good 11.1 472,308 416,490
Considered doubtful 127,808 147,295
600,116 563,785
Allowance for expected credit loss 11.2 (127,809) (147,296)
472,307 416,489

11.1 These trade debts include Rs. 22.76 million (2023: Rs. 38.65 million) representing receivable against export sales
to Africa and Asia amounting to Rs. 0.61 million (2023: Rs. 0.61 million) and Rs. 22.15 million (2023: Rs. 38.04
million), respectively.

2024 2023

11.2 Allowance for expected credit loss Note - (Rupees in 000) ----------

The movement in expected credit loss during the year is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year 147,296 120,637

Provision recognised during the year 11,681 26,659

Write offs during the year (31,168) -

(19,487) 26,659
Balance at the end of the year 127,809 147,296

11.3 This includes receivable from a related party - Depilex (Private) Ltd amounting to Rs. 3.10 million (2023: Rs. 1.34

million). The maximum aggregate amount outstanding during the year was Rs.3.10 million (2023: Rs. 1.89
million).

127




Annual Report

2024

Macter International Limited

11.4 The aging of trade debts at the consolidated statement of financial position date was:

Total gross
carrying amount

Expected credit loss

Total gross
carrying amount

Expected credit loss

12. LOANS AND ADVANCES - considered good

Current portion of long-term loans

Advances to:
- employees
- suppliers

2024
Not past 30 days 31-90 90-180 181 to over Total
due days days 360 days 360 days
----------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------mmmmmmmmmmo oo
316,694 10,990 65,364 8,187 45,275 153,606 600,116
280 187 1,515 7,422 21,431 96,974 127,809
2023
Not past 30 days 31-90 90-180 181 to over Total
due days days 360 days 360 days
----------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----mmmmmmmmmmmm o
177,856 85,270 19,202 28,3834 71,998 180,625 563,785
- - - 405 14,298 132,593 147,296
2024 2023
Note ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
7 3,899 3,679
12.1 24,873 28,056
12.2 249,354 113,835
274,227 141,891
278,126 145,570

12.1 Advances to employees are provided to meet business expenses and are settled as and when the expenses are

incurred.

12.2 Includes interest free advances to major foreign suppliers having maturity latest by September 2024.

Jurisdiction

Asia

Europe

Name

Zhejiang Jingxin Pharmaceuticals
Shijianzhuang Lonzeal Pharmaceutical

Echemi Global Co, Limited

Shandong Wego Prefills
Meggle Gmbh & Co., Kg

Syntegon Technology Services Ag
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2024 2023
Note  ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
13. TRADE DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Deposits
Margin against bank guarantees 36,665 27,025
Tender deposits 77,853 74,877
Provision for doubtful deposits 13.1 (33,143) (25,563)
44,710 49,314
Others 380 -
81,755 76,339
Prepayments
Software license 90 1,057
Takaful - 1,565
Machine and equipments - 28
Fees, rates and taxes - 1,135
90 3,785
Other receivables
Profit on saving accounts 1,450 491
Letter of credits 6,575 -
Others 1,335 850
9,360 1,341
91,205 81,465
13.1 Provision for doubtful deposits
The movement in provision for doubtful deposits during the year is as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year 25,563 16,349
Provision recognised during the year 8,080 9,214
Write offs during the year (500) -
Balance at the end of the year 33,143 25,563

14.

SALES TAX REFUNDABLE

The entire pharma sector was exempt from levy of sales tax both at input as well as output stage, except for
certain excipient and packing materials but through Finance (Supplementary) Act, 2021 exemption regime was
converted into a Zero-rating regime for finished items of pharma products with effective from January 17, 2022,
however, sales tax was imposed at standard rate of 17% on purchase / import of Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients
(API1). As a result, the pharma sector was allowed to claim sales tax refund on all purchases including APIs,

excipient and packing materials on consumption basis.
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Moreover, aforesaid law has further been amended through the Finance Act, 2022 with effect from July 01,
2022, a special tax regime for Pharma Sector has been introduced whereby manufacture or import of substances
registered as drugs under the Drugs Act, 1976 shall be subject to 1% sales tax with the condition that such tax
shall be final discharge of tax in the supply chain and no input tax shall be allowed to the importer and
manufacturer of such goods. Furthermore, APIs, excluding excipients, for manufacture of drugs registered under
the Drugs Act, 1976 or raw materials for the basic manufacture of Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients shall also

be subject to 1% sales tax with no input tax adjustment.

In this respect net Rs. 16.52 million (2023: Rs. 38.71 million) is sales tax input paid on purchases / import of
materials up to June 30, 2024 which is refundable on consumption basis.

15. TAXATION - NET

Tax receivable at the beginning of the year
Tax payments/ adjustment made during the year

Less: provision for tax- current
Tax receivable at the end of the year

16. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand
Cash in bank

Conventional bank:

- current account in local currency
Islamic banks:

- current accounts

- saving accounts in local currency

- dividend accounts in local currency

16.1 These carry profit at the rates ranging from 11.01% to 19.00% (2023: 3.25% to 10.25%) per annum.
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Note 2024 2023

---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
21,568 26,008

229,335 154,332

250,903 180,340

(190,470) (158,772)

60,433 21,568

5,324 7,509

5,330 1,466

16.1 176,469 44,542

550 1,457

187,673 54,974

187,673 54,974
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18. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized share capital

2024

2023

65,000,000 65,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

2024

2023

8,430,868 8,430,868
30,489,649 30,489,649
223,834 223,834
6,666,667 6,666,667
45,811,018 45,811,018

Macter International Limited

2024

2024

2023

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

650,000

650,000

2024

Fully paid ordinary shares of
Rs.10 each Issued for cash

Fully paid ordinary shares of
Rs.10 each Issued as fully paid
bonus shares

Fully paid ordinary shares of
Rs.10 each Issued pursuant to
merger with Associated
Services Limited

Fully paid ordinary shares of
Rs.10 each Issues as fully paid
right shares

84,309

304,897

2,238

66,667

2023

304,897

2,238

66,667

458,111

458,111

17.1 All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Group’s residual assets. Holders of these shares are entitled
to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the

Group.

18. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Advance against motor vehicles
Employees' gratuity payable

2024 2023
Note  ----ee--e- (Rupees in '000) ----------
2,661 2,416
18.1 260,173 222,369
262,834 224,785
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18.1 Defined benefit plan - unfunded gratuity scheme

18.1.1 In accordance with the requirements of IAS-19 "Employee Benefits", actuarial valuation was carried out as at
June 30, 2024, using the "Projected Unit Credit Method". Provision has been made in the consolidated financial
statements to cover obligation in accordance with the actuarial recommendations.

18.1.2 Risks on account of defined benefit plan
Final salary risk

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what the Group has assumed.
Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount would increase proportionately also.

Discount rate fluctuation

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to market yields (at the
statement of financial position date) on government bond. A decrease in government bond yields will increase
plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the current plans’ bond
holdings.

Withdrawal risk

The risk that the actual withdrawal experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability. The significance
of the withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and entitled benefits of the beneficiary.

Inflation fluctuation

The salary inflation is the major risk that the funds carry. In a general economic sense and in a longer view,
there is a case that if bond yields increase, the change in salary inflation generally offsets the gains from the
decrease in discounted benefit obligations. But viewed with the fact that the plan have no asset, the impact
of salary inflation might be significant.

Mortality risk

The risk that the actual mortality experience is different. The effect depends on the beneficiaries’ service/age
distribution and the benefit.

2024 2023

--- Number of Employees ---

The number of employees covered under
the defined benefit scheme are: 389 404

The following principal actuarial assumptions were used
for the valuation of above mentioned scheme:

Financial assumptions
- Discount rate (per annum compounded) 14.50% 15.50%
- Salary increase per annum 14.50% 15.50%

Demographic assumptions

- Normal retirement 60 years 60 years
- Mortality rate EFU (61-66) EFU (61-66)
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18.1.3 Liability in the consolidated of financial position
Present value of defined benefit obligations
18.1.4 Movement in liability during the year

Balance at the beginning of the year

Charged to profit or loss

Benefits paid during the year

Actuarial loss recognised in other comprehensive income
Balance at the end of the year

18.1.5 Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligations

Present value of defined benefit obligations as at July 01
Current service cost

Finance cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial loss on obligation

Present value of defined benefit obligations as at June 30

18.1.6 Charge for the defined benefit plan
Cost recognised in profit or loss

Current service cost
Finance cost

Actuarial loss on defined benefit obligation
recognised in other comprehensive income

Actuarial loss on defined benefit obligations
- Loss due to change in experience adjustments

Expected benefit payments to retirees in the following year

18.1.7 Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation

Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation (years)

Holding Company
Misbah Cosmetics (Private) Limited

18.1.8 Sensitivity analysis

2024 2023

260,173 222,369
222,369 207,938
40,190 31,801
(33,808) (27,018)
31,422 9,648
260,173 222,369
222,369 207,938
9,697 8,343
30,493 23,458
(33,808) (27,018)
31,422 9,648
260,173 222,369
9,697 8,343
30,493 23,458
40,190 31,801
31,422 9,648
20,922 21,084
8.10 7.50
3.60 3.90

Sensitivity analysis has been performed by varying one assumption keeping all other assumptions constant
and calculating the impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligations on various employee benefit
schemes. The increase / (decrease) in the present value of defined benefit obligations as a result of change

in each assumption is summarized below:
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Increase in discount rate by 1%
Decrease in discount rate by 1%
Increase in expected future increment in salary by 1%
Decrease in expected future increment in salary by 1%

18.1.9 Maturity Profile

Year 1
Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5
Year 6 to Year 10

2024

(16,580)
18,634
18,463
16,718

20,922
31,408
37,050
31,861
41,818
225,059

2023

(12,837)
14,409
14,277

(12,943)

21,942
23,129
28,877
31,620
27,423
186,343

18.1.10 As per the recommendation of the actuary, the charge for the year ending June 30, 2025 amounts to

Rs. 13.38 million.

18.1.11 Comparison for Five Years

As at June 30 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
(Rupees in '000)
Defined benefit obligation 260,173 222,369 207,938 207,028 196,286
Experience adjustment
loss / (gain) on obligation
(as percentage of
plan obligations) 12.08% 4.34% -1.52% 0.67% -2.06%
2024 2023
Note  -eoeeeeee (Rupees in '000) ----------
19. LONG-TERM FINANCING
Loan from a related party 19.1 40,833 44,518
Diminishing musharakah
- vehicles 19.2 423,691 352,321
464,524 396,839
Less: Current maturity shown under current liabilities (103,437) (76,949)
361,087 319,890

19.1 This represents loan obtained from a director of the Parent Company to meet working capital requirement,
under mark-up arrangements. It carries profit at 90 days average of 12 Months KIBOR for 3rd calendar
Quarter-2023 which was fixed for one year starting from August as 22.32% per annum. Profit rate for the
month of July was 14.48%. (2023: 90 days average of 12 Months KIBOR for 3rd calendar Quarter-2022 which
was fixed for the period as 14.48% per annum). The profit and principle are payable on monthly basis.
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19.2 These facilities have been obtained from First Habib Modaraba. These carry mark-up at the rates of 3 Months
KIBOR plus 1.00% to 1.5% (2023: 3 Months KIBOR plus 1.00% to 1.25%) per annum and are having maturity
till June 2029 (2023: March 2028). These facilities are secured against the respective assets.

2024 2023
Note  ----oemem- (Rupees in '000) ----------
20. LONG TERM PROVISION
Provision for gas infrastructure development cess
Provision for gas infrastructure development cess 20.1 85,484 72,906
Less: Current portion of provision (85,484) (71,122)
- 1,784

20.1 This represents Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) against which the Honourable Supreme Court
of Pakistan in its order dated August 13, 2020 held that the same is constitutional. Subsequent to the order,
the SSGC issued GIDC bill under which the total amount would be recovered in forty eight equal monthly
installments.

The above demand of the SSGC was not acknowledged as liability by the Company and it filed an appeal
before the Honourable High Court of Sindh (the Court) on the grounds that no burden of GIDC had been
passed to its customers and thus the Company is not liable to pay GIDC under GIDC Act, 2015. Based on the
above appeal, the Court was pleased to grant stay vide order dated September 29, 2020 against the demand
raised by the SSGC and restrained them from taking any coercive action.

2024 2023
Note  —-oeem-e- (Rupees in '000) ----------
21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other creditors 546,863 582,974
Advances from customers - contract liabilities 414,160 238,337
Refund liability 65,552 75,650
Accrued liabilities 250,058 231,810
Sindh Workers’ Welfare Fund 21.1 12,721 44,817
Payable to provident fund 21.2 12,098 11,430
Sales tax and withholding taxes payable 19,247 17,414
Sindh Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 21.3 8,477 30,230
Central Research Fund 21.4 6,786 6,046
Auditors' remuneration 4,316 3,603
Accrued profit 7,627 6,951
Others 29,513 40,555
1,377,418 1,289,817

21.1 Sindh Workers’ Welfare Fund

This pertains to the provision recorded by the Company on account of Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund. During
the year, the Deputy Commissioner SRB issued a show cause notice dated September 4, 2023, demanding the
Company Rs. 20.74 million along with penalty and default surcharge. In response, the Company submitted
documentary evidences, however the Commissioner raised the same demand through order dated November
4, 2023. The Company challenged the order before the Appeals SRB, however paid the Sindh Workers Welfare
Fund as per the demand.
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Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the
Act and the rules formulated for this purpose.

2024 2023
Note  ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
Sindh Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Balance at the beginning of the year 30,230 1,591
Mark-up thereon 3,015 66
Charge for the year 33,477 30,230
66,722 31,887
Less: Payments made during the year (58,245) (1,657)
Balance at the end of the year 8,477 30,230
Central Research Fund
Balance at the beginning of the year 6,046 5,318
Charge for the year 6,785 6,046
12,831 11,364
Less: Payments made during the year (6,045) (5,318)
Balance at the end of the year 6,786 6,046
SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS - secured
Murabaha - MCB 22.1 - 24,166
Murabaha - Others 22.2 105,000 10,000
105,000 34,166

Murabaha facilities were utilised with MCB Islamic Bank for the purpose of purchase of inventory. They carry
profit at the rate 3 Month KIBOR + 2% (2023: 3 Month KIBOR + 2.25%) per annum. These were secured against
hypothecation of stock in trade and trade debts of the Company.

This represents outstanding murabaha facilities with the Fuad Abubakar Chundrigar, Asif Misbah, Nighat Misbah
and Anis Fatima for the purpose of purchase of inventory. These carry profit at the rates ranging from 16%
t0 23.79% (2023: 16%) per annum and having maturity till November 2024 (2023: December 2023).

Short-term borrowing avalaible

The Holding Company has following short term borrowing facilities available as at year end:

The facilities for running musharakah arrangements with various banks amounted to Rs. 700 million (2023:
Rs. 500 million) all of which remained unutillised at the year end. The rate of mark-up applicable on running
finance is based on one month KIBOR + 0.8% to 1.5% (2023: one month KIBOR + 1% to 1.5%) per annum.
The facilities from Murabaha, Musaadah and Istisna arrangement from various banks amounted to Rs. 3,350
million (2023: Rs. 2,950 million) all of which remained unutilised as at the year end. The rate of markup

applicable is based on respective tenor KIBOR + 0.8% to 1.5% (2023: respective tenor KIBOR + 1% to 1.5%) per
annum.
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CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Holding Company

Contingencies

Description of the factual basis of Name of Principle Date
the Name of the Court court Party instituted
proceedings and relief sought

Certain cases have been filed against the Company by National Industrial Employees vs Various dates
some employees against their termination / dismissal, Relations Macter

having exposure of the Company to the extent of Rs.18.03 Commission International

million (2023: Rs.12.62 million). Provision has not been Limited

made in these unconsolidated financial statements for the
said amount as the management of the Company, based
on the advice of its legal counsel handling the subject
cases, is of the opinion that matters shall be decided in
the Company’s favour.

23.1.2 The Additional Commissioner of Inland Revenue (ACIR) raised demands of Rs. 22.43 million, Rs. 51.46 million,

23.2

23.3

and Rs. 245 million for the tax years 2015, 2016, and 2017, respectively, through an order under section 122(5A)
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. In this order, the assessing officer added back certain expenses. The Holding
Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Inland Revenue (Appeals). Subsequently, an order was
passed by the CIR (Appeals) dated December 30, 2022, wherein most of the disallowances were remanded
back to the ACIR. Being aggrieved, the Holding Company filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal.
Subsequently, orders were passed by the Appellate Tribunal dated April 20, 2023, and September 15, 2023,
for the tax years 2017, 2015, and 2016, respectively, wherein most of the disallowances were remanded back
to the ACIR. The ACIR issued amended orders on June 11, 2024, with appeal effects, in which most of the
disallowances were reversed, and a demand of Rs. 15.67 million was raised, which was adjusted against
available tax refunds from the relevant years. The adjustment has been appropriately accounted for in these
consolidated financial statements.

Commitments

Capital expenditure commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2024 amounted to Rs. 114.32 million (2023: Rs.
13.61 million).

The facilities for opening letters of credit and guarantees as well as shipping guarantee from banks as at June
30, 2024 amounted to Rs. 2,475 million (2023: Rs. 1,700 million), Rs. 275 million (2023: Rs. 150 million) and
Rs. 700 million (2023: Rs.500 million) respectively of which unutilized balance at period end amounted to Rs.
2,022 million (2023: Rs. 1,118 million), Rs. 152 million (2023: Rs. 32 million) and Rs. 700 million (2023: Rs. 500
million) respectively.
Subsidiary Company

Contingencies

There are no contingencies as at June 30, 2024 (2023: Nil).
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23.4 Commitments

ljarah rental commitment outstanding as at June 30, 2024 amounting to Rs. 3.368 million.

24. OPERATING SEGMENTS
Cosmetics and

Pharmaceuticals Fragrance Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
(Rupees in '000)

Local 8,305,994 6,995,531 581,933 339,941 8,887,927 7,335,472
Export 561,369 652,786 - - 561,369 652,786
Inter segment revenue - - - - (3,388) -
Toll income 60,076 57,118 - - 60,076 57,118
Turnover 8,927,439 7,705,435 581,933 339,941 9,505,984 8,045,376
Trade discount 1,156,940 822,713 673 - 1,157,613 822,713
Sales return 68,384 62,572 28,842 38,671 97,226 101,243
Sales tax 166,733 139,759 109,892 55,544 276,625 195,303
Net turnover 7,535,382 6,680,391 442,526 245,726 7,974,520 6,926,117
Cost of sales (4,353,751) (3,895,678) (200,776) (119,539) (4,554,527) (4,015,217)
Gross profit 3,181,631 2,784,713 241,750 126,187 3,419,993 2,910,900
Other income 69,806 79,457 3,194 12 73,000 79,469
Distribution costs (1,966,770) (1,780,759) (223,670) (158,578) (2,190,440) (1,939,337)
Administrative expenses (505,089) (376,795) (6,731) (3,112) (511,820) (379,907)
Inter segment expenses - - - - 3,388 -
Charge on loss allowance on

trade debts and trade deposits (13,923) (35,873) (5,838) - (19,761) (35,873)
Other expenses (52,983) (52,537) - - (52,983) (52,537)
Finance cost (100,573) (61,371) (25,422) (11,079) (125,995) (72,450)
Unallocated expense

(brand Amortization) - - - - (2,706) (2,706)
Profit / (loss) before tax 612,099 556,835 (16,717) (46,570) 592,676 507,559

. Cosmetics and
Pharmaceuticals Fragrance Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
(Rupees in '000)
Segments assets 5,113,083 4,623,405 211,027 151,342 5,324,110 4,774,747
Unallocated assets - - - - 43,199 45,905
Segment liabilities 2,215,974 2,052,712 193,252 110,624 2,409,226 2,163,336
Depreciation and
amortization charge 254,465 205,576 2,977 2,079 257,442 207,655

Capital expenditure 295,975 433,711 8,455 3,538 304,430 437,249
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Out of total net turnover of the Group 93% (2023: 91%) relates to customers in Pakistan. Further, all non-
current assets of the Group as at June 30, 2024 are located in Pakistan.

Out of total net turnover of the Group, 11% (2023: 10.49%) relates to a single major customer located in

Pakistan.

Reconciliation of segments assets and liabilities
Assets

Total assets for reportable segments

Intangibles - goodwill and brands

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation for reportable segments
Amortization of brand

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
Gross sales

Local

Export

Toll manufacturing

Less: Trade discount

Sales return
Sales tax

Disaggregation of revenue

Sale of goods and services
Toll manufacturing

25.2

2024 2023
---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
5,324,110 4,774,747

43,199 45,905
5,367,309 4,820,652
257,442 204,949
2,706 2,706
260,148 207,655
8,884,539 7,335,472
561,369 652,786
9,445,908 7,988,258
60,076 57,118
9,505,984 8,045,376
1,157,613 822,713
97,226 101,243
276,625 195,303
1,531,464 1,119,259
7,974,520 6,926,117
7,915,045 6,869,570
59,475 56,547
7,974,520 6,926,117

25.2 This include sales to government organizations amounting to Rs. 10.15 million (2023: Rs. 366.46 million)
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COST OF SALES
Raw and packing materials consumed

Manufacturing overheads
Salaries, wages and benefits
Fuel and power
Depreciation on operating fixed assets
Repairs and maintenance
Provision for slow moving and obsolete stock-in-trade
Laboratory and factory supplies
Research and development cost
Stores and spares consumed
Rent, rates and taxes
Printing and stationery
Depreciation on right-to-use assets
Travelling, conveyance and entertainment
Takaful
Postage and communication
Amortisation
Training and development cost
Legal and professional
Others

Work-in-process

Opening

Closing

Cost of goods manufactured
Finished goods

Opening

Closing

Physician samples

Raw and packing materials consumed

Opening stock
Purchases

Closing stock

26.2

4.4

10.4

46.1

6.2

2024 2023
---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
3,481,811 3,117,062
532,642 472,523
256,353 201,959
116,742 99,089
92,599 72,680
50,076 110,545
45,879 52,434
19,418 -
13,332 11,995
12,573 13,991
9,670 10,145
7,444 5,992
6,635 3,350
5,263 4,260
1,998 1,346
577 725
542 151
35 1,103
956 136
1,172,734 1,062,424
4,654,545 4,179,486
158,131 190,105
(214,700) (158,131)
(56,569) 31,974
4,597,976 4,211,460
627,565 484,262
(583,087) (627,565)
44,478 (143,303)
(87,927) (52,940)
4,554,527 4,015,217
1,161,795 743,087
3,516,057 3,535,770
4,677,852 4,278,857
(1,196,041) (1,161,795)
3,481,811 3,117,062

This includes amount of Rs. 16.3 million (2023: Rs. 14.64 million) and Rs. 26.61 million (2023:

Rs. 19.7 million) in respect of defined contribution and defined benefit plan respectively.
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SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits

Sales promotion expenses

Training and development cost
Freight charges

Depreciation on operating fixed assets
Repair and maintenance

Traveling, conveyance and entertainment
Subscription charges

Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Fuel and power

Takaful

Rent, rate and taxes

Allowance for expected credit loss
Service charges

Postage and communication

Legal and professional

Printing and stationery

ljarah lease rentals

Amortization

27.1

4.4

4.6.1

6.2

2024

2024

2023

1,189,900 1,103,412
439,838 345,311
81,534 108,236
80,531 79,804
80,273 55,721
72,016 56,849
95,619 60,897
35,305 37,595
30,820 24,038
38,947 31,414
12,869 8,380
11,660 11,574
5,481 -
5,963 4,608
4,628 4,649
3,318 4,043
1,612 2,726
2,832 2,786
2,193,146 1,942,043

This includes Rs. 36.23 million (2023: Rs. 29.75 million) and Rs. 5.94 million (2023: Rs. 5.7 million) in respect

of defined contribution and defined benefit plan respectively.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits

Repairs and maintenance

Fuel and power

Legal and professional

Depreciation on operating fixed assets
Rent, rates and taxes

Printing and stationery

Traveling, conveyance and entertainment
Postage and communication

Auditors’ remuneration

Directors' fee

Takaful

Amortization

Training and development cost

Others

28.1

4.4

28.2

6.2

2024 2023
---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------

299,960 245,493
81,663 43,924
23,950 19,636
23,636 12,592
20,827 20,968
15,045 8,421
13,186 8,355
12,744 4,864
5,481 3,523
4,802 4,421
1,525 3,100
3,508 2,852
633 1,042
206 253
1,266 463
508,432 379,907

This includes amount of Rs.11.88 million (2023: Rs. 9.64 million) and Rs. 3.69 million (2023: Rs. 3.2 million)
in respect of contribution to provident fund and provision of gratuity respectively.
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2024 2023
Note ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
28.2 Auditors’ remuneration
Annual audit fee of the Holding Company and a Subsidiary 2,000 1,857
Half year review of the Holding Company 600 474
Annual audit fee of consolidated financial statements
of the Holding Company 500 517
Certifications for free float, CDC, unclaimed dividend
Code of Corporate Governance and Shariah Audit 900 833
4,000 3,681
Out of pocket expenses 446 413
Sales tax 356 327
4,802 4,421
29. OTHER EXPENSES
Sindh Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 33,477 30,230
Workers’ Welfare Fund 12,721 11,487
Central Research Fund 6,785 6,046
Exchange loss - net - 3,011
Mark-up on Sindh Workers’ Profit Participation Fund - 66
Operating fixed assets written off - 1,697
52,983 52,537
30. OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets
Profit on saving accounts - Islamic 14,272 9,410
Income from non-financial assets
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 4.2 52,810 43,525
Gain on termination of lease - 6,867
Scrap sales 2,144 6,147
Exchange gain - net 716 -
Dividend income on mutual fund units - 7,643
Others 3,058 5,877
58,728 70,059
73,000 79,469
31 FINANCE COST
Profit / mark-up on:
- Loan from a related party 10,613 7,896
- Diminishing musharakah 67,998 43,410
- Murabaha 14,398 3,051
- Musharakah running finance 2,558 5,472
Markup on lease liabilities 51.1 13,574 11,295
Markup on GIDC 12,578 -
Mark-up on Sindh Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 3,015 -
Others - 39
124,734 71,163
Bank charges and commission 1,261 1,287
125,995 72,450
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2024 2023
---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
TAXATION
Current 227,467 181,720
Prior (35,287) (22,483)
Deferred (1,710) (465)

190,470 158,772

Income tax assessments of the Group have been finalised up to and including the tax year 2023 under the self
assessment scheme.

2024 2023 2024 2023
(Effective tax - (Rupees in '000) ----------
. . . rate%)
Relationship between income tax
expense and accounting profit
Accounting profit before taxation 595,382 556,835
Tax at the enacted tax rate 29.00 29.00 172,661 161,482
Effect of super tax 9.80 10.00 58,338 55,684
Tax effects of:
Income subject to minimum tax 1.88 0.55 11,167 3,071
Income subject to FTR (2.31) (1.41) (13,725) (7,830)
Carried forward turnover tax adjustment (0.67) (6.34) (4,000) (35,300)
Prior period adjustment (5.93) (4.04) (35,287) (22,483)
Others 0.35 0.74 2,101 4,148
32.12 28.50 191,255 158,772

Subsidiary Company

Provision for current taxation has been made on the basis of Minimum tax under section 113 of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001.

2024 2023
Note ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the
Holding company 406,692 357,128

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 45,811,018 45,811,018

Basic earnings per share (Rupees) 33.1 8.88 7.80

There is no dilutive effect on basic earnings per share of the Group as at June 30, 2024 and
June 30, 2023.
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34. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before income tax

Adjustments of non-cash and other items:
Depreciation on operating fixed assets
Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Amortisation
Finance cost
Mark-up on lease liabilities
Provision for gratuity
Operating fixed assets written off
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain on termination of lease
Dividend income on mutual fund units
Provision for slow moving and obsolete stock-in-trade
Allowance for expected credit loss
Change in working capital

34.1 Change in working capital

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores and spares
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Trade deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Sales tax refundable

Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables

35.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Note

4.4
4.6.1
6.2
31
31
18.1.4

30

10.4

34.1

2024

2023

592,676 507,559
217,842 175,778
38,264 30,030
4,042 4,553
112,421 61,155
13,574 11,295
40,190 31,801

- 1,697
(52,810) (43,525)
- (6,867)

- (7,643)
50,076 108,749
19,761 26,659
(312,767) (561,129)
723,269 340,112
698 (2,013)
(210,693) (648,914)
(67,528) (80,301)
(132,556) (10,364)
(17,820) 20,282
29,086 140,787
(398,813) (580,523)
86,046 19,394
(312,767) (561,129)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, operational risk, liquidity risk and
market risk (including return rate risk, currency risk and price risk). The Board of Directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:

35.1 Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to
discharge its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. Concentrations of credit risk arise
when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar economic features
that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic,
political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group’s
performance to developments affecting a particular industry. The Group's management is regularly conducting

detailed analysis on sectors.

144




Annual Report

Macter International Limited 2024

35.1.1 Exposure to credit risk

The Group seeks to minimize the credit risk exposure through having exposures only to customers considered
credit worthy. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is:

2024 2023
Note  ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------

Long-term deposits 8 75,240 60,402
Trade debts 11 472,307 416,489
Loans 7 5,728 5,609
Trade deposits and other receivables 13 91,115 77,680
Cash and Bank balances 16 187,673 54,974

832,063 615,154

The Group does not take into consideration the value of collateral while testing financial assets for impairment.
The Group considers the credit worthiness of counterparties as part of its risk management.

Long-term deposits

This represents long term deposits under diminishing musharakah and with utility companies. The Group does
not foresee any credit exposure there against as the amounts are paid to counterparty as per agreement and
is refundable on termination of the agreement with respective counterparty.

Trade debts

The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade debtors is mainly influenced by the individual characteristics
of each customer. Majority of the Group's sales are made against receipts in advance from customers. The
Group has no major concentration of credit risk with any single customer. The majority of the trade customers
have been transacting with the Group for several years. The Group establishes an allowance for impairment

where it considers recoveries are not probable.

The information about the credit risk exposure on the Group's trade receivables as at June 30, 2023 and June
30, 2024 is disclosed in note 11.4 of these consolidated financial statements

Loans

This represent loan given to executive and other employees as per the policy of the Group, the management
does not expect to incur credit loss there against.

Trade deposits and other receivables

These represent deposits placed with various suppliers as per the terms of securing availability of services.
The management does not expect to incur credit loss there against.

Cash and bank balances

Cash is held only with reputable banks with high quality external credit rating assessed by external rating
agencies. Following are the credit ratings of banks with which balances are held or credit lines available:
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Rating Rating
Banks agency Short term Long term
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited VIS A-1 A+
Askari Bank Limited PACRA A-1+ AA+
Bank Al Habib Limited PACRA A-1+ AAA
Bank Al Falah Limited - Islamic PACRA A-1+ AAA
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited VIS A-1+ AA
Habib Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA
MCB Bank Limited PACRA A-1+ AAA
MCB Islamic Bank Limited PACRA A-1 A+
Meezan Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA
Allied Bank Limited PACRA A-1+ AAA
Bank islami Pakistan Limited PACRA A-1 AA-
The Bank of Punjab PACRA A-1+ AA+
Habib Metro Bank Pakistan Limited PACRA A-1+ AA+
First Habib Modaraba PACRA A-1+ AA+
UBL Ameen Islamic Banking VIS A-1+ AAA

35.1.2 Concentration of credit risk

35.2

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities
in the same geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations
indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.
In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, management focuses on the maintenance of a diversified
portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly. Management does
not consider that it has any concentration of credit risk at the reporting date.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group applies the prudent risk management policies by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and by
keeping committed credit lines. The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group's financial
liabilities at the following reporting dates:

2024
Carrying Contractual upto one onetofive Morethan
amount cashflows year years five years

--- (Rupees in '000) - i

Long term financing 464,524 (627,531)  (185,806)  (410,747)  (30,978)
Lease liabilities 113,416 (152,319) (46,366)  (105,953) -
Trade and other payables 903,929 (903,929) (903,929) - -
Short-term borrowings 105,000 (111,807) (111,807) - -
Unclaimed dividend 550 (550) (550) - -

1,587,419  (1,796,136) (1,248,458)  (516,700)  (30,978)
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2023
Carrying Contractual upto one onetofive More than
amount cashflows year years five years

Long term financing 396,839 (575,961) (150,392) (385,639) (39,930)
Lease liabilities 143,366 (202,143) (44,350) (157,793) -
Trade and other payables 941,543 (941,543) (941,543) - -
Short-term borrowings 34,166 (34,966) (34,966) - -
Unclaimed dividend 1,457 (1,457) (1,457) - -
1,517,371 (1,756,070) (1,172,708) (543,432) (39,930)

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of mark-
up rate effective as at June 30. The rate of mark-up has been disclosed in respective notes to these financial
statements.

July 01, Cash Non June 30,
2023 Flows cash flow 2024

35.2.1 Changes in liabilities from

35.3

financing activities

Long-term financing 396,839 (94,385) 162,070 464,524
Lease liabilities 143,366 (43,524) 13,574 113,416
Short-term borrowings 34,166 169,998 - 204,164
Unclaimed dividend 1,457 (907) - 550

575,828 31,182 175,644 782,654
Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market prices comprise three types of risks which includes interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk,
such as equity risk. There has been no change in the Group's exposure to market risk or the manner in which
this risk is managed and measured.

35.3.1 Return rate risk

Return rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in the market return rates. The Group’s return rate risk arises from long-term financing,
short-term borrowings, Murabaha payables and bank deposits obtained with floating rates. All the borrowings
of the Group are obtained and investments made in the functional currency.

At the reporting date, the return rate profile of Group’s return-bearing financial instruments was:
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2024 2023
Note  ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
Financial asset
Local currency - savings accounts 16 176,469 44,542
Financial liabilities
Long-term financing 19 464,524 396,839
Short-term borrowings 22 105,000 34,166
393,055 386,463

The Group analyses its return rate exposure on a regular basis by monitoring existing facilities against prevailing
market return rates and taking into account various other financing options available.

The following figures demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in return rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax:

Increase / Effect on profit
(decrease) in before tax
basis points
(Rupees in '000)
2024
Change in return rate +100 (3,931)
Change in return rate -100 3,931
2023
Change in return rate +100 (3,865)
Change in return rate -100 3,865

35.3.2 Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or a financial liability will fluctuate due to a change
in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign
currency. As at the reporting date, the Group is not materially exposed to such risk.

Exposure to currency risk
The Company is exposed to currency risk on trade debts, bank balances and trade creditors that are denominated

in a currency other than the respective functional currency of the Company, primarily U.S. Dollar. The Company’s
exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

2024 2023
Rupees us Chinese Rupees us Chinese
Dollars Yuan Dollars Yuan

(Amounts in '000)
Financial assets

Bank Balance 26,101 94 - - - -
Financial liabilities

Trade creditors (37,951) (110) (188) - - -
Net exposure (11,850) (16) (188) - - -
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The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

2024 2023 2024 2023

Average rates Reporting date rates

(Rupees in '000)

US Dollar to PKR 282.90 250.57 278.34 285.99

Chinese Yuan to PKR 39.16 35.96 38.31 39.67

Sensitivity analysis

A 10 percent strengthening / (weakening) of the Pak Rupee against the US Dollar and Chinese Yuan at June
3, 2024 would have decreased the profit by Rs. 1.13 million. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular return rates, remain constant and the analysis is performed on the same basis as done in prior year.

35.3.3 Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk arising from uncertainties about future value of investment securities. As at reporting
date, the Group is not exposed to equity price risk.

2024 2023
Note ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
35.4 Categories of financial instruments
35.4.1 Financial assets as per statement of financial position
At amortised cost
Trade debts 11 472,307 416,489
Cash and bank balances 16 187,673 54,974
Trade deposits and other receivables 13 91,115 77,680
Long-term deposits 8 75,240 60,402
Loans 7 5,728 5,609
832,063 615,154
35.4.2 Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position
At amortised cost
Long-term financing 19 464,524 396,839
Lease liabilities 5.1 113,416 143,366
Trade and other payables 21 903,929 941,543
Short-term borrowings 22 105,000 34,166
Unclaimed dividend 550 1,457
1,587,419 1,517,371
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Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in these financial statements approximate fair
values.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.

The following table shows assets recognised at fair value, analyzed between those whose fair value is based
on:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to maintain healthy capital ratios, strong credit
rating and optimal capital structures in order to ensure ample availability of finance for its existing and potential
investment projects, to maximize shareholders value and reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net

debt is calculated as total loans and borrowings including any finance charges thereon, less cash and cash
equivalents.
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The gearing ratios as at June 30, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

2024 2023

Note ---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
Long-term financing 19 464,524 396,839
Accrued profit 21 7,627 6,951
Total debt 472,151 403,790
Cash and bank balances 16 (187,673) (54,974)
Net debt 284,478 348,816
Share capital 17 458,111 458,111
Reserves 2,496,389 2,190,996
Total capital 2,954,500 2,649,107
Capital and net debt 3,238,978 2,997,923
Gearing ratio 8.78% 11.64%

The Group finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of its working capital with a
view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.

CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

The capacity and production of the Group’s Pharmaceuticals machines are indeterminable as these are multi-
product and involve varying processes of manufacture.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties of the Group comprise associates, companies with common directorship, directors, key
management personnel, staff provident fund and a subsidiary. Details of transactions with related parties
during the year, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements are as follows:

2024 2023
---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
Descriptions Nature of transactions
Key Management Personnel Dividend 46,423 62,324
Short term benefits 63,368 50,210
Retirement benefits 3,064 2,460
Executive Director Loan repaid 3,684 3,684
Non-Executive Directors Fee for attending meetings 1,525 3,100
Provident fund Contribution paid 60,557 54,040
Depilex (Private) Limited Sales made by the
(Common directorship) Subsidiary Company 5,461 4,525
Balances Outstanding
Depilex (Private) Limited Amount due to the
(Common directorship) Subsidiary Company 3,102 1,339
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There are no other related parties with whom the Group had entered into transactions or has arrangement /
agreement in place.

The Group carries out transactions with related parties at commercial terms and conditions as per the Group's
policy.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Executive
Directors

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
(Rupees in '000)

Chief Executive Executive Total

Managerial remuneration 27,330 23,018 27,330 23,018 23,062,631 339,084 23,117,291 385,120

Bonus 1,658 - 1,658 - 24,706 1,540 28,022 1,540
Perquisites 99 247 573 99 1,317 625 1,989 971
Retirement benefits 1,532 1,230 1,532 1,230 1,318,322 22,100 1,321,386 24,560
Other benefits 2,344 1,909 2,376 1,919 3,036,354 33,619 3,041,074 37,447

32,963 26,404 33,469 26,266 27,443,330 396,968 27,509,762 449,638

Number of persons 1 1 1 1 77 68 79 70

The Chief Executive, Directors and Executives are also provided with free use of Group maintained cars as per
the terms of their employment.

The non-executive directors are not entitled to any remuneration except meeting fee as disclosed in note 37.1.

As per the Act, an executive means an employee, other than the chief executive and director, whose salary
exceeds twelve hundred thousand rupees in a financial year.

NUMBER OF PERSONS EMPLOYED

Number of persons employed as at year end were 1,176 (2023: 1,262), the average number of persons employed
during the year were 1,207 (2023: 1,385) and number of person employed in factory as at year end were 464
(2023: 411).

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for the purpose of comparison
or better presentation, the effect of which is immaterial and is summarised below:
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Particulars Reclassified Reclassified Amount
from to Rupees in '000
Charge on loss allowance on Selling and Statement of 35,873
trade debts and trade deposits distribution profit or loss
expenses
Provision For Gas Infrastructure Long term Current portion of 71,122
Development Cess (GIDC) provision long term provision

40. GENERAL

40.1 Non-adjusting event after the reporting date
Subsequent to year ended June 30, 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on
September 27, 2024 has proposed final cash dividend @ Rs. 1.00/- per share amounting to Rs. 45.811 million
(2023: Rs. 0.54/- per share amounting to Rs. 24.738 million) for approval of the members at the Annual General
Meeting to be held on October 26, 2024.

40.2 Date of authorisation for issue

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on September 27, 2024 by the Board of
Directors of the Group.

o P '

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE _J DIRECTOR
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FORM OF PROXY

Annual General Meeting

| / We, of

being the member(s) of Macter International Limited and holder of

Ordinary Shares as per Share Register Folio/CDC Account No.

hereby appoint Mr./Ms. having CNIC
No. or Passport No. Folio/CDC Account No. of or
failing him/her having CNIC No. or Passport No.
Folio/CDC Account No. of who is also a member of the

Company as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the annual general

meeting of the Company to be held on October 26, 2024 at 12:30 pm and/or at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of October, 2024 Rupees Five Revenue
Stamp)
Witnesses: 1. Signature:
Name:
CNICH: Signature
Address: (The signature should agree with the
2. Signature: specimen sighature with the Company)
Name:
CNICH:
Address:
IMPORTANT:

1. This proxy form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company, F-216,
SITE, Karachi at least 48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting.

2. This form should be signed by the member or by his/her attorney duly authorized in writing. If the member is
a Corporation, its common seal should be affixed to the instrument.

For CDC Account Holders/Corporate Entities
In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met.

(i) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC or Passport Numbers
shall be mentioned on the form.

(i) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the
proxy form.
(iii) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original Passport at the time of the meeting.

(iv) In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature
shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) alongwith proxy form to the Company.
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